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          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Good

          3  afternoon.  Welcome to today's hearing on the New

          4  York City Council's Committee on Economic

          5  Development.  My name is Jerome O'Donovan, and I

          6  Chair this New York City Council's Economic

          7  Development Committee.  I'm from Staten Island.

          8                 I want to introduce those members of

          9  the Committee present.  We have Councilwoman

         10  Eldridge from Manhattan, Councilman Fisher from

         11  Brooklyn, Councilwoman Clarke from Brooklyn,

         12  Councilman Golden from Brooklyn, and Councilman

         13  Rodriguez from Brooklyn.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Brooklyn is

         15  at a high.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Brooklyn is

         17  at a high, and as well as your, Councilman,

         18  Councilman Perkins, who called for this hearing on

         19  behalf of the Community of Harlem.

         20                 Today we will be conducting an

         21  oversight hearing on the status and future of the

         22  125th Street Market at the request of Council Member

         23  Bill Perkins our host.  Those persons wishing to

         24  provide testimony, please, check in with an

         25  appearance card with the Sergeant- At- Arms over
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          2  here to your right to testify.

          3                 Now nearly two decades ago, the City

          4  of New York determined that a safe and convenient

          5  market place was necessary for the selling of wares

          6  and merchandise by street merchants located on 125th

          7  Street.  Mart 125 was opened in 1986 with original

          8  design concept to create a public, retail, quasi-

          9  open air market space for the street vendors to

         10  allow them to develop their businesses.  Over that

         11  20 year period, the Mart 125 has had a varying

         12  degree of experience, management and success with

         13  the ability of state admission.

         14                 Today's hearing will attempt to

         15  explore the historical goals of the market and its

         16  current status and its future.  This hearing was

         17  requested as a result of the current Administration

         18  Plan in March of 1998, before the New York City

         19  Department of Planning for the unrestricted

         20  disposition of the Mart 125 property by transferring

         21  the property to the New York City Economic

         22  Development Corporation for potential sale.  The

         23  City Council Subcommittee on Permits and

         24  Dispositions held a hearing on the City's

         25  application and on October 15th, 1998, the
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          2  Subcommittee and full Committee of Land Use voted

          3  against the application. On October 27th, 1998, the

          4  full Council of the City of New York voted against

          5  the applications.

          6                 Shortly after these votes, the

          7  merchants in Mart 125 have receive from the

          8  Department of Business Services notice to vacated

          9  their stalls as of November 30th, 1998, in order to

         10  evicted the remaining tenants.  This matter is

         11  currently in litigation, and it is my understanding

         12  that a court date has been scheduled for earlier

         13  this morning, today.

         14                 Several proposals have been suggested

         15  for the future direction of Mart 125, and I hope

         16  that these will be discussed today, that

         17  recommendations can be made regarding the future of

         18  the market.

         19                 Today's hearing will give the people

         20  who will be most affected by any changes at Mart

         21  125, the opportunity to voice their opinions and

         22  concerns.  And at this time, I will call upon

         23  Council Member Bill Perkins to say his remarks,

         24  before our Congressman, our first witness, says his.

         25                 Councilman Perkins.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you.

          3  First let me express on my own personal behalf as

          4  well as on the behalf of my community, my deep

          5  appreciation to Chairman O'Donovan and the members

          6  of the Economic Development Committee, especially

          7  the Brooklyn members, for the fact that you have

          8  understood and concerns what to do about, myself as

          9  it relates to my neighborhood, as it relates to Mart

         10  125, and have brought City Hall to Harlem so that

         11  this particular issue can be fairly and openly

         12  addressed, and hopefully, a process set up that

         13  would eventually, not only Mart 125 being

         14  successful, but also in becoming a model for other

         15  type of economic development in the Harlem Community

         16  and throughout the City.

         17                 I have a written statement that I

         18  would like to read at this time.  As many of you are

         19  aware, Mart 125 was established in the late

         20  seventies and early eighties as a community economic

         21  development venture between the City and the State

         22  for the purpose of providing a public retail market

         23  space for street vendors on 125th Street.  The

         24  admission would give the street merchants an

         25  opportunity to become legitimate entrepreneurs.
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          2                 In 1979, Board of Estimate

          3  Resolutions specifically stated its use by small

          4  businesses, most importantly however, the contract

          5  with the merchants clearly states that management of

          6  the market would ultimately be turned over to the

          7  Mart merchants.  The current contract also called

          8  for technical assistance in training for the

          9  merchants to assist in establishing a tenant

         10  cooperative form of ownership and management of the

         11  Mart.  To date, those contract agreements remain

         12  unfulfilled.

         13                 Why are we here today?  We are here

         14  today because on March 10th, 1998, the Office of the

         15  Deputy Mayor for Economic Development, Planning and

         16  Administration, through the City's Uniform Land Use

         17  Review Process, sometimes called ULURP, submitted an

         18  application for the unrestricted disposition of the

         19  Mart.  In the course of the Land Use Committee's

         20  consideration of this application, several

         21  significant questions arose.  We needed

         22  clarification on a number of peer issues in order to

         23  make an informed decision.  A number of requests

         24  made by my office as well as the Land Use Committee

         25  for information from the Administration, which did
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          2  not materialize.  No response was received from City

          3  or the specifics of the request.  Subsequently, on

          4  October 15th, 1998, I, along with my colleagues in

          5  the Council, voted to disapprove the application.

          6  Finally, after the vote, the City proceeded to serve

          7  the merchants with eviction notices.

          8                 In preparation for the hearing by

          9  this Committee, the Committee on Economic

         10  Development, we, again, requested information from

         11  the City, but to no avail.  One plan by the City is

         12  that the Mart is being subsidized by revenue of

         13  another sources. Yet, documentation on the subsidy

         14  has not been provided to us. Other proof requested,

         15  from which we have received no response, includes

         16  the following:

         17                 1.  What were the total capital costs

         18  associated with the construction of the Mart?  What,

         19  if any, additional capital money has been expended

         20  on the Mart since its opening?

         21                 2.  What was the anticipated

         22  operational costs of the Mart?  Please, provide,

         23  write down the operational costs incurred by the

         24  Mart since its opening?

         25                 3.  What income has been collected
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          2  annually from the vendors in the Mart?

          3                 4.  One year since its construction,

          4  what has been the annual occupancy rate for the

          5  Mart?

          6                 5.  Please, provide all documents

          7  relating to the creation of a trust, the income for

          8  which was used to help support the Mart?  What is

          9  the status of the trust?

         10                 6.  Does the building housing the

         11  Mart have a Permit, Certificate of Occupancy?  If

         12  no, what work would be necessary to obtain a Permit,

         13  Certificate of Occupancy?  How much would that cost?

         14                 7.  Please provide, in addition, the

         15  management of the Mart, including the identity of

         16  the managers and activities of operation that

         17  operate and promote the Mart?

         18                 As I have stated before, my intent in

         19  calling for this hearing is that it is important to

         20  provide a voice for the people of this community to

         21  participate in decisions affecting their lives and

         22  their community, but also to gain knowledge and

         23  information so that we can develop a successful plan

         24  for the Mart and for this community.

         25                 We have invited a number of expert
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          2  witness, including community leaders and advocates,

          3  elected officials, and other relative individuals.

          4  I look forward to candid and substantive exchange of

          5  ideas and information at today's hearing, and trust

          6  that our courage together this afternoon, will be a

          7  worthwhile and productive hearing.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you,

          9  Council member. Before the Congressman speaks, I

         10  want to say that it is my understanding that the

         11  Administration will not appear at today's hearing,

         12  but has submitted a letter, and we will read that

         13  into the record a little later.

         14                 The Committee had requested, by a

         15  letter, to the Administration by my Legal Counsel,

         16  Todd Turner, who is with me, that the Administration

         17  provide detail explanation as per Councilman

         18  Perkins, regarding the expense of the management

         19  history and occupancy information for the Mart.

         20  This letter will be read into the record at a later

         21  time in the hearing.

         22                 And now for our first witness, we

         23  have with us the Honorable Charles Rangel,

         24  Congressman for Harlem.  Congressman Rangel.

         25                 CONGRESSMAN RANGEL:  Mr. Chairman and
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          2  members of this Committee, as someone that was born

          3  and raised just a couple of blocks from here, I

          4  cannot tell you how proud I am to see so many of you

          5  taking the time out of your schedules to come to my

          6  home town, and I think this is some evidence of the

          7  respect that you have for our new member that we're

          8  sending there, because you have been just super in

          9  getting the best for that particular job, and Bill

         10  Perkins, in such a short period of time, has made us

         11  all so proud.

         12                 I respect, most of all, the dignity

         13  in which these hearings are being held.  It is so

         14  important that we send a message to the Mayor that

         15  we all should be reading on the same page for a

         16  stronger and economically strong City of New York,

         17  support for tourism, opportunity for people, and

         18  really hope for New York City's future.

         19                 As a result of the support that I

         20  received from my community, I sit on a Committee, as

         21  Una Clarke knows that among our other jurisdictions

         22  is trade.  Before I went to Washington, I was

         23  saying, how can we find so many hundreds of billions

         24  of dollars for foreigners and we can't seem to find

         25  money for those back home? But I have learned in a
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          2  hurry that the name of the game is trade, and that

          3  if people don't have disposable income, if people

          4  don't have jobs, and they can't buy, and if they

          5  can't buy, we can't sell, then our economic growth

          6  is just starving.  Can't we find our Country, our

          7  State, and our City, during extremely real economic,

          8  well, economically, and yet, we find our prisons are

          9  just swollen with people, that not only don't have

         10  their jobs, but no hope for the jobs because of lack

         11  of trade?  A lot of this has to do with, where

         12  people don't see jobs, when they don't feel the

         13  opportunity, when they give up hope, going to jail

         14  is just no big deal.  And yet they find that as our

         15  City responds, our community responds, and we look

         16  at 125th Street, any economist would tell you that

         17  it is not the big multi- nationals that our country

         18  depends on for jobs for our people, it is the

         19  smaller business people really, that create the jobs

         20  and create the strength and create the family bonds,

         21  that people can learn not just to how to apply for a

         22  job, but how to one day run a business, and that is

         23  what makes the country and the community so great.

         24                 We're stumbling on so many different

         25  plans in Harlem, and yet, instead of just throwing
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          2  out those that haven't worked, it would seem to me

          3  that with an empowerment zone being established,

          4  with only six in the nation, and this 125th Street

          5  being in the heart of it, that if you find that

          6  individuals have decided that instead of working for

          7  somebody they wanted to be entrepreneurs, and that

          8  they went into partnership, not with the local bank

          9  for loans, but with establishments and agencies of

         10  the New York State government to say, why don't you

         11  give it a chance, why don't you get off of the

         12  street, why don't you set up your business not in

         13  violation of City law, but to really get started

         14  with technical advice, with support so that you

         15  could not only be successful, but show other people

         16  in the community what it is like?

         17                 Not only did we let them down, by not

         18  giving them that support system, but I can tell you

         19  as a public official, I felt so embarrassed just

         20  going into the places where they were paying rent.

         21  I have seen good merchandised destroyed because the

         22  ceiling, the roof, was leaking.  I have seen it in

         23  the summertime where it was more comfortable to be

         24  on the street than it was to be in the Mart.  And,

         25  of course, nobody, nobody that likes to browse, and
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          2  to look, and to really see what is there, if it is

          3  going to be an attraction to the tourists, we should

          4  have it as pleasant and as clean as possible.

          5                 Government has let down those people

          6  who took a venture with their own limited resources

          7  to see whether or not they could make it in the big

          8  City, in the big 125th Street.  And no matter, for

          9  those who agree with me, it's throws me off when you

         10  show it that way, you will have ample time to

         11  propose, come November, to indicate your support,

         12  but I would like to keep it on target here with the

         13  Committee in saying that, if indeed, the Mayor or

         14  anyone who works for him has a problem with the

         15  site, you don't say that you didn't do it right and

         16  we're closing it up.  What you're supposed to say,

         17  is that how can we make it work, how can we do

         18  better, and it is not as though we're talking about

         19  a thriving economic community, we're talking about a

         20  community where the emphasis is on getting off of

         21  welfare and going to work.  Now if we can spend as

         22  much time in talking about people avoiding work, why

         23  would we bring to him an opportunity where people

         24  from the community can see people from the community

         25  selling things that are so unique for us to be able
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          2  to go and tell our friends and to tell people who

          3  will come to New York to go to the Mart.

          4                 I hope that you would find some way

          5  to do it.  And I sit here in saying that, whatever

          6  has to be done as partners in this, whatever funds

          7  are available to do this, that it is not as though

          8  we are asking the City to go it alone.  Being an

          9  empowerment zone means that the State is here with

         10  you, if we're talking about creating jobs, the

         11  Federal government is here with you, if we're

         12  talking about creating jobs, and God knows the City

         13  should be the first one up, not close it, but asking

         14  for additional help to make certain that not only

         15  does it work for Harlem, or it works for East

         16  Harlem, or it works for Washington Heights, but it

         17  works for Bed Sty, it works for South Bronx, it

         18  works for South Queens.  This is not a unique

         19  problem, we have limited resources and a will to

         20  venture and to go out.

         21                 And so what you have done is perhaps

         22  to let the let whole City know Harlem wants to work,

         23  we want jobs, we want our kids to get the education

         24  so that they can do what, the best job possible.  We

         25  really just don't believe that we should
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          2  concentrating on putting people in jail without

          3  focusing on what we need to create jobs about

          4  trading there.

          5                 So, Mr. Perkins, let me thank you

          6  for, once again, making us all proud.  Mr. Chairman,

          7  coming from Staten Island, I owe you big time, and

          8  for the Committee to come here, it makes us all

          9  proud, and I hope that this is the beginning to show

         10  them that I'm willing to be a full- time partner in

         11  making certain that this works.  And whether it's in

         12  Ken Fisher's Districts, whether it's Una Clarke's

         13  District, because that is the International Trade

         14  lady, that maybe the Mayor should know that, we

         15  really want to work together as partners.

         16                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you,

         18  Congressman Rangel.  Your comments are very well

         19  taken, Congressman, and we're here and we're

         20  listening, and we're going back to the

         21  Administration, and we want some answers.

         22                 CONGRESSMAN RANGEL:  Thank you.

         23  Thank all of you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Ladies and

         25  gentleman, member of my Council, members do have to
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          2  leave, there are a number of hearings being held in

          3  City Hall today, also, but we're here and we will

          4  continue this hearing.

          5                 And now we have from the Manhattan

          6  Borough President, Angela Cavaluzzi.

          7                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Hello, my name is

          8  Angela Cavaluzzi. Is that better?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Yes, speak a

         10  little louder, please?

         11                 MS. CAVALUZZI:  Okay, my name is

         12  Angela Cavaluzzi, Director of Land Use for the

         13  Manhattan Borough President, C. Virginia Fields, and

         14  I will be reading her statement into the record.

         15                  "Last summer the City asked the

         16  Harlem community to approve its plans to dispose of

         17  Mart 125 without restrictions, in other words, part

         18  with a site that embodies a portion of the spirit of

         19  Harlem.

         20                 The community as a whole said, no.

         21                 Mart 125 is not simply another retail

         22  space along the Main Street of Harlem.  Mart 125 is

         23  a public place and as such, is a valued community

         24  resource.  And as a resource, it is the local

         25  community that should determine the Mart's purpose,
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          2  its program, and its development plan.

          3                 When the Mart was set up, its purpose

          4  was to function as a public retail market, to

          5  provide sidewalk merchants to be housed and given

          6  the opportunity to market their wares and develop

          7  their business.

          8                 Presently, the Mart has not received

          9  a fair opportunity to demonstrate its viability and

         10  full potential for various reasons, lack of

         11  technical assistance to the merchants, problems in

         12  management, and absence of a business plan that both

         13  managers and tenants adhere to.

         14                 Also at this time, renovation of the

         15  building and redesign of the interior space is in

         16  order.

         17                 In speaking with various individuals

         18  and groups in the community, the consensus if that

         19  the general purpose of the Mart was and is, to

         20  foster small local retail merchants allowing their

         21  businesses to grow and expand and eventually, to

         22  open their own storefronts along the commercial

         23  streets of Harlem.

         24                 Recommendations to me by the

         25  community can be summarized in three points:
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          2                 1.  The Mart should be made up of

          3  small retail establishments of multiple tenancy to

          4  complement the intended use of the space as a local

          5  merchants retail market.

          6                 2.  Products distinct to Harlem's

          7  historic and ethnic heritage should be displayed and

          8  sold in the Mart that would help create a common

          9  theme in the activity and decor at Mart 125, so that

         10  the Mart becomes a special destination for tourist

         11  and local shoppers.

         12                 3.  The small businesses within the

         13  Mart should have the opportunity to grow and expand

         14  by having some of the space in the Mart allocated to

         15  retail and office incubator space, to provide for

         16  training programs and other services that are

         17  needed.

         18                 In order for the Mart other progress

         19  to its next stage, a development plan and business

         20  plan is necessary.  Several groups including the

         21  current tenants of the Mart have suggested potential

         22  redevelopment plans.

         23                 In my response to the City's request

         24  to dispose of the Mart, I had recommended that the

         25  City should release a Request for Proposals for the
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          2  development of this space as a local merchants

          3  market.  Various local merchants and entrepreneurs

          4  could form partnerships with local development

          5  corporations and community developers to respond to

          6  the RFP.  Specific ideas for the marketplace

          7  concept, renovation, management and operation would

          8  be generated.  Throughout that process, the Harlem

          9  community would work with DBS and EDC so that a

         10  viable solution would be realized.

         11                 An RFP would allow the merchants and

         12  community organizations the opportunity to create a

         13  business plan for the market.  That is what we want.

         14    Mart 125 is a community institution and we should

         15  provide the tools and opportunity to make Mart 125 a

         16  success."

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you

         19  very much.  We have Stanley Gleaton from Community

         20  Board #10.  Any questions?

         21                 MR. GLEATON:  Good afternoon.  I

         22  would first like to thank Speaker Vallone and also

         23  Chairman O'Donovan and the City Council members for

         24  having this hearing here in Harlem.  I would, also,

         25  like to especially acknowledge and thank our
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          2  Councilman Bill Perkins for his unrelenting hard

          3  work and commitment in bringing the Harlem Community

          4  to this point in our struggle with the disposition

          5  of Mart 125.

          6                 As Chair of Community Board #10, my

          7  comments are both official and personal because I

          8  live within the Community Board #10 boundaries.

          9  Since 1979, we have had the privileges and

         10  convenience of the Mart for some 20 years, and I say

         11  privilege, because the Mart represents the

         12  culmination of a long hard struggle for many of us

         13  Harlem residents who had to picket and write letters

         14  to get a place where Harlem vendors and

         15  entrepreneurs could sell, trade, and most of all

         16  independently make a living, while also helping the

         17  economy of our community.  Now we are faced, 20

         18  years later, with a plan for eviction of the

         19  original tenants of the Mart.  A complete

         20  overhauling of its original cooperative structure

         21  and the possible institution of and takeover by a

         22  merchant or entity that will be contrary to its

         23  original premise.

         24                 As everyone here is aware, Harlem is

         25  changing before our eyes and the day of the mega
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          2  store is well and alive.  With these impending plans

          3  one of our last venture for the independent Harlem

          4  vendors and their livelihood will be a thing of the

          5  past, and will have an adverse impact to these very

          6  same people in the future who have worked so hard.

          7  Besides being a major tourist attraction, and an

          8  embodiment of our cultural heritage, which it is

          9  known for, this building is very near and dear to

         10  the Harlem residents.  You might ask, why should I

         11  care where this is not my community?  But this is

         12  your City, and although you will all be leaving

         13  Harlem after this hearing, I would hope that you

         14  will leave with us a commitment that you will not

         15  take a piece of our history with you.

         16                 The Merchants Association of the Mart

         17  125, has presented a plan to save the Mart.  Our

         18  elected officials have voiced their concerns and

         19  this community is here to show their support.  The

         20  Community Board has worked closely with the

         21  merchants, our elected officials and the community

         22  and will continue this endeavor to help save this

         23  Harlem institution.  The Mart must remain as its

         24  original plan of 1979 intended it to be. We ask you

         25  to review the plan of action for The Marts survival
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          2  as submitted by our elected officials and the

          3  merchants, and reconsider any plan to change its

          4  original status.  Community Board #10 of Central

          5  Harlem urges you to consider the economic survival

          6  of The Mart, it vendors and the emotional impact it

          7  will have on the community.  Come to the table with

          8  us and as you have shown you concern by your

          9  presence here today, so that your ultimate goal will

         10  be one for the Harlem community.  I thank you all

         11  for your time and I implore you to vote to save The

         12  Mart 125.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:   We have a

         15  question, Councilwoman Clarke.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Recognizing

         17  that the Community Board has a Land Use Committee,

         18  first of all, tell me how did they vote on it, were

         19  there any dissention, and finally, when it finally

         20  came to the full Board, what was the vote?

         21                 MR. GLEATON:  Well we had our own

         22  hearing, and during our hearing we voted that we

         23  wanted the Mart to stay at its original premise, and

         24  we wanted there to be the vendors that are there

         25  now.  But after our hearing, the Board voted that it
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          2  should remain in its original form.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Thank you

          4  very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you,

          6  Sir.  We have another representative from the Harlem

          7  District, Market Association, Richard Hollins,

          8  Deborah Short, Albert Burnside, and Otanga Libutsi.

          9  Would you all come up together, please?  Identify

         10  yourself, please?

         11                 MR. STATON:  First I would like to

         12  say good afternoon to City Council and to the Chair,

         13  and I would like to thank you for coming to the

         14  Harlem Community to address this pertinent

         15  situation.

         16                 My name is Cornelius Staton, and I'm

         17  the President of The Mart Members Association.

         18  Today you're going to hear testimony on every aspect

         19  of just what the Mart meant and what it still means

         20  to the vendors that are there, to the people in the

         21  community, to Harlem, itself, and the world.  You

         22  will hear testimony of some 13 years ago when the

         23  doors opened for business at Mart 125, how the

         24  promises began and how they were working from its

         25  very start of its existence.
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          2                 I can't speak in detail, personally,

          3  about 13 years ago, but I can speak about three

          4  years ago when I entered the Mart as a young,

          5  energetic businessman, and its open space a terrible

          6  distraction from the very beginning.  I can remember

          7  my first Saturday waking up in the morning after I

          8  opened my business in Mart 125 to turn on the

          9  television and I heard the weather man say that to

         10  take an umbrella along that it would be raining cats

         11  and dogs outside.  Well, I took along the umbrella,

         12  and it was raining cats and dogs outside, but oddly

         13  enough when I entered Mart 125 it was raining cats

         14  and dogs inside.  I couldn't believe what I was

         15  seeing, the garbage cans, the pails, the water just

         16  pouring in over the vendors garments, how customers

         17  came in and turned around, I couldn't believe what I

         18  was seeing.

         19                 Our vision of Mart 125 is just like

         20  any other businessman or woman in America, and that

         21  is to generally succeed. And you would think that

         22  with an economy booming and the crime down, instead

         23  of our chances of enjoying a vast opportunity of

         24  success in the Harlem community, we are constantly,

         25  constantly being locked out of that opportunity.
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          2                 I, like Martin Luther King, I have a

          3  dream that one day this nation will rise up and live

          4  out the true meaning of its creed, and oddly enough

          5  some 30 years later, I do want to tell you that the

          6  sad news that that dream has not yet been realized.

          7  What I do want you to do, Council, is to help that

          8  dream and the dreams of many other entrepreneurs in

          9  the New York, in the urban communities, to come to a

         10  reality.  That is my testimony I want to give to you

         11  today.

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 MS. SHORT:  Good afternoon, Council

         14  members and members of the Harlem community.  My

         15  name is Deborah Short.  I'm a merchant at Mart 125

         16  and I have been there for 10 years.  And this is my

         17  statement, which is a combination of all the

         18  opinions of merchants at Mart 125.

         19                 It should be very obvious to all

         20  fair- minded people that the merchants of Harlem's

         21  Mart 125 went into business to gain an opportunity

         22  to better our lives, the lives of our families and

         23  the community.  We went into business to receive a

         24  hand up and not a hand out.  We wanted to be an

         25  asset to the Harlem Community and to the City of New
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          2  York, not a burden.

          3                 It is only because of individuals who

          4  have their own private agendas and racist

          5  stereotypes that we are perceived as a group of

          6  individuals who are not qualified to operate or own

          7  anything, who are incapable of managing our own

          8  destinies, people who are non- creative or

          9  resourceful, individuals who are non productive and

         10  unorganized, individuals who want a free ride, and

         11  all of the other negative things that are always

         12  generally said about black people.

         13                 For nearly 13 years, we merchants

         14  have gone through hell because of circumstances not

         15  designed or created by our hands. The very people,

         16  who claimed that they only wanted to assist us, did

         17  everything humanly possible to hinder and hurt us.

         18  From the very beginning we were set up because the

         19  Mart was never designed to succeed.

         20                 For 13 years the merchants were left

         21  to languish under conditions that very few people

         22  could endure.  We never had substantial

         23  advertisement, there was never any viable marketing

         24  or promotional plans for the Mart.  We operated our

         25  businesses without a lease, therefore, we could
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          2  never obtain business loans or grants that will

          3  allow us to grow our businesses.

          4                 Nothing was ever done to fill up

          5  empty store spaces. The Mart was never filled to 100

          6  percent capacity, although there were a lot of

          7  interested and qualified community residents who

          8  were and still are interested in coming into the

          9  Mart.  The facility itself is being left to

         10  deteriorate like a City- owned tenement building.

         11                 We suffer no heat in the winter and

         12  no air conditioning in the summer.  Beautiful

         13  tapestries that once hung from the ceiling was

         14  destroyed because of leaks.  Pictures that use to

         15  line the walls of the Mart were also destroyed.

         16                 The Mart hasn't has an entire paint

         17  job since its been opened.  We suffered through

         18  inept and indifferent management who was never

         19  experienced or qualified to operate a facility such

         20  as Mart 125.  Management who were never able to make

         21  any real difference in how things were operated

         22  because they always had to answer to the individuals

         23  who signed their paychecks and not to the merchants.

         24                 We suffer from an uninviting outside

         25  facade and poorly liters front display windows.
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          2  Compare the front of the Mart to other stores on

          3  125th Street, few passerby's know that we are

          4  actually a shopping mall.  Only in Harlem could

          5  conditions like these be left unchecked and be

          6  allowed to persist and fester for so long.  In the

          7  last two years we have suffered through something we

          8  have never experienced before, thefts of our

          9  merchandise and products.

         10                 Merchants were forced out of business

         11  because of insurmountable conditions.   Many

         12  merchants invested in Mart 125 and went broke.  Over

         13  150 individuals have left the Mart over the course

         14  of its inception, not because their businesses were

         15  so successful they moved up and onward, or that

         16  their businesses weren't viable, they went out of

         17  business because they couldn't afford to stay in the

         18  Mart under the horrendous conditions we had to

         19  endure.

         20                 Although the Mart was created for

         21  people of modest means, our rents are as high as

         22  $100.00 per square foot for very little space.  Some

         23  had to move out of the City because they couldn't

         24  find jobs in the mainstream market, some of the

         25  former merchants are even back on the streets.  In
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          2  spite of all of these horrendous conditions, the

          3  City of New York still wanted to collect rent

          4  regardless.

          5                 How many of you could survive under

          6  such circumstances?

          7                 Mart 125 has a lot to offer the

          8  Harlem Community and the City in general.  It is

          9  more than just a retail establishment, it is a place

         10  where people meet and greeted and exchange ideas.

         11  Mart 125 is a cultural institution that has

         12  attracted the attention of people from all over the

         13  world.  From as far away as Africa, China, Japan,

         14  France and Germany, they have visited the Mart.  We

         15  have also had visiting Presidents and other Heads of

         16  State from Foreign Countries.

         17                 African- American professionals and

         18  entertainers, such as Susan Taylor and Roberta Flack

         19  have patronized Mart 125. Rap artists have also

         20  patronized the Mart.  No one can convince us that

         21  the concept of Mart 125 cannot work under the right

         22  set of circumstances.  We are willing to make it

         23  work.

         24                 We also supply products that one

         25  cannot find in the mainstream American Market.  We
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          2  sell Kwanzaa items, African American cloth,

          3  essential oils, African inspired clothing and one of

          4  a kind hand- made jewelry, home decorating items,

          5  African Art and cosmetics, books cards and other

          6  African cultural items.  We also patronize other

          7  black own businesses and manufacturers, thus helping

          8  African people stay employed.

          9                 Most importantly, black people from

         10  the community, who normally wouldn't be hired

         11  anywhere else in Harlem, when you pass by

         12  construction sites, Lee Nails, Popeye's Chicken, and

         13  other establishments on 125th Street, you can see

         14  that African- American people, especially our young

         15  black men, are not being hired in their own

         16  communities, let alone mainstream America.  Look

         17  around you and see who is employed in Harlem.

         18                 Please encourage the City of New York

         19  to retain the Mart as a public retail market in

         20  Harlem.  Encourage them to honor the original Board

         21  of Estimate's Resolution of 1979.  Like the late,

         22  great, Ms. Fannie Lou Hammer once said, "We are sick

         23  and tired of being sick and tired!"  In conjunction

         24  with the community of Harlem, our politicians, the

         25  community board, the empowerment zone, and our
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          2  banking institutions, we can make the Mart a

          3  success.

          4                 We the merchants of Harlem's Mart 125

          5  are asking you as a community to be in support of

          6  us.  Thank you very much.

          7                 MR. HOLLINS:  Mr. Perkins, City

          8  Council, community volunteers, elected officials and

          9  friends and neighbors, my name is Richard Hollins.

         10  I came into the Mart under the old statutes that if

         11  I came into the Mart I would be able to start work

         12  and do your business and eventually would be able to

         13  manager a place of business.  Right in the beginning

         14  the City sent us to school to learn how to be

         15  managers of the Mart and managers of our business.

         16  But under the use of the HUDC, it was the first

         17  management to take over the Mart, it has never been

         18  fact.

         19                 I have been interested in vending

         20  since 1970, I'm probably the only one of the Mart

         21  merchants that was in the business of vending at the

         22  time of the conception of the idea of getting us off

         23  of the street.  I came into the Mart, they had HUDC

         24  managing the Mart, it was very much a mismanagement

         25  of the Mart. Monies that was supposed to go to the
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          2  Mart did not wind up at the Mart.  Consequently,

          3  after nine or ten years, the City got another

          4  manager called MMS.  The Mart continued to go down,

          5  it continued to not be a viable entity.  For one

          6  year they had a contract and that one year contract

          7  they failed, and the City brought in DBS.

          8                 Under DBS, which was a management

          9  organization that hired out their management, the

         10  Mart continued to go down and there was nothing to

         11  bring us back.  What happened is that DBS only did

         12  enough to keep the doors open.  Then we came to a

         13  situation where DBS decided that they wanted to get

         14  rid of the building.  In order to do this they had

         15  to go to the City because of the idea of the

         16  memorandum that was put down in 1978, we had to go

         17  back to the City again, and ask the City Council to

         18  allow them to transfer the building to EDC.

         19                 This transfer of the building was to

         20  allow EDC to get rid of the building, give it to a

         21  private enterprise or to corporations or to a large

         22  company.  The community and the City Council denied

         23  this agreement.  Upon denying this agreement, the

         24  City decided that it would go and get rid of the

         25  merchants.  What the City did at that time, one day

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            35

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  after October 14th, on October 15th, 16th, the City

          3  went and started an action in court, called a hold

          4  over.  A hold over action is that every one in the

          5  building, they refused to take our rent, and in

          6  October they started sending our rents back to us.

          7  So they did not take our rent.  There was an

          8  agreement in our permit, this was a permit that we

          9  were forced to sign, and the agreement in that

         10  permit stated that they could put us out within 30

         11  days notice.  All they had to do was give us our

         12  rent and now they had to go into their hold over

         13  action, but it was a 30- day notice to put us out.

         14  We all have received that notice.

         15                 While we're having this meeting

         16  today, this morning 25 people were in court on this

         17  notice, and got it postponed, I believe, but there

         18  is also six more that will be going again February

         19  28th.  What is happening is that because you have

         20  denied their motion to sell, they said, if we get

         21  rid of the vendors and get them out, we're no longer

         22  selling vendors, we are selling an empty building.

         23  And the idea is to get the vendors out of the Mart

         24  by March.  This is supposed to be over by March,

         25  we're all supposed to be on the street.
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          2                 And what we are asking you to do, is

          3  somehow using your powers or whatever you have and

          4  your name to stop this City from evicting the

          5  vendors.  What has happened is they are blaming the

          6  vendors for the Mart not working, and we have

          7  nothing to do with management.  The Mart doesn't

          8  work because of bad, bad management.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:   We have been

         11  joined by Council Member Carrion from the Bronx.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Good

         13  afternoon, everybody.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Now let me

         15  just ask you one question, since you are forced to

         16  vacated the market, have you made any alternative

         17  plans for your business, has anybody thought about

         18  that?

         19                 MR. HOLLINS:  Alternative plans would

         20  mean one thing, my comparing and to be ready to

         21  leave, I'm not ready to leave.  I can make plans, I

         22  can possibly get another place to go, but I am a

         23  vendor who came off the streets with no money, and

         24  the reason why I came off of the street because at

         25  that time I didn't have a place that I wanted to go
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          2  or that I was able to go.  I am not ready to make

          3  plans to leave, I want to make plans to stay.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Before we go

          5  onto the next person to speak, I just want to

          6  recognize some of our high school students that are

          7  here this afternoon to join us in seeing government

          8  at work, particularly as it affects their community,

          9  and I just want to acknowledge the students from

         10  Wadely High School.

         11                 I also want to acknowledge and

         12  publicly thank Gail Benjamin and the Land Use Staff

         13  of the City Council that helped in preparing this

         14  afternoon's hearing as well as having provided the

         15  technical and other types of important information

         16  as relates to this particular project.  You know

         17  Benjamin and her Land Use Staff.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Councilwoman,

         19  let's continue and then you can ask a question.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Sir.

         22                 MR. LIBUTSI:  My name is Otanga

         23  Libutsi, and I took a day off from the job which we

         24  always get, and I have a space in Mart 125.  What I

         25  wanted to say is, I have been in Harlem.  I came
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          2  from Detroit where I worked also with people on the

          3  street, and I came to New York, also, I worked with

          4  the people on the street.  In 1971 I had a store

          5  known as the African Bizarre at the corner of 135th

          6  and Lennox.  I stayed they because I had a lease and

          7  I knew who owned the building.  The building was

          8  owned by someone in Long Island with a name of Mr.

          9  Arfarese (phonetic).  When he went to raise the

         10  rent, which was twice the amount I was paying, I had

         11  to leave, and I went on Broadway.  I bought a space

         12  on Broadway between 54th and Broadway, same African

         13  Bizarre serving the people. Also, they chased me

         14  from there, I went to Atlanta and then from Atlanta

         15  I came back to New York and I have a space, I began

         16  working on the street.  I was here between 1970s,

         17  1980s.

         18                 The reason why we have this hearing

         19  is because there were vendors on the street.  I have

         20  a picture here that maybe some of you would look at,

         21  it's a platoon of French Revolution of 1770s, where

         22  the nobilities always ride on the back of the other

         23  classes.            In Mart 125 I was one of the

         24  people who were interviewed when I was on the street

         25  by people who wanted to write a proposal, because
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          2  these people were sympathetic, they saw us all the

          3  time rain, snow, or winter, pushing our carts back

          4  and forth, back and forth, morning and night, and

          5  they sympathize as they say, we're going to write a

          6  proposal.  I asked some of them, I say, you know,

          7  some of us, although we are on the street, we're all

          8  not bums as some of you think, we have the ideas, we

          9  can help you write the proposal.  They said, don't

         10  worry brother, we will do it, and they wrote the

         11  proposal on the back of these street vendors, always

         12  we are carrying them, on the back of street vendors

         13  they wrote a proposal which they sent to the City,

         14  the State and Federal government.   I know how to

         15  write a proposal, because I have been in their

         16  institutions, and I know.  The proposal was funded

         17  in the name of street vendors.  We did not see the

         18  money, although we are the ones who are being used,

         19  we didn't see anything.  But they told us don't you

         20  worry, as usual, we are going to build a place for

         21  you and take you from the street to an accommodate

         22  bliss.  Of course, I make it short, they built a

         23  place which they called Mart 125, it was managed by

         24  HUDC.

         25                 Now in that proposal, I want to
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          2  request the City Council and the City

          3  Administrators, please, would you do us a favor?  I

          4  want you to give our Counsel an original

          5  constitution, or original proposal that brought

          6  about Mart 125.  We want to read that proposal, if

          7  they say in that proposal a second point when this

          8  people would be like this we would be able to take

          9  it out from them.  If the idea was to take us from

         10  the street, and the idea now is to take us back to

         11  the street, then we have to hold up to the original

         12  document.  I know that American people are very,

         13  very honest, they always vote the original document,

         14  all 17 agents, they say our constitution, may you

         15  people who come here and say we are having the

         16  hearing.

         17                 The hearing here is because of people

         18  who were working on the street, brought about what

         19  we call Mart 125, and it really makes me so mad to

         20  see that the City has a lawyer who has sent me, 10,

         21  only one letter, of course, 10 letters telling you,

         22  we want you out.  We want 10 letters, some of them I

         23  am not going to get them, they are certified and

         24  they still have some at the post office.

         25                 Now the point I would like to make
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          2  too, is when the building was built it was built for

          3  the permanent space, it was built to be temporary,

          4  the way it is constructed.  Since we went in, I have

          5  been in since 1986, since we went in, of now, that

          6  place is still leaking.  Our space for African

          7  artifacts, my space is right directly below the rest

          8  room.  That rest room has leaked for a number of

          9  times, the table comes down, I complain, it does not

         10  go anywhere.

         11                 There is one thing that I want to

         12  make sure that this community understands, the

         13  community in Harlem, in Saint Louis, in Detroit, in

         14  anywhere where they are or where we are, always

         15  facilities are meant for us to fail, so that they

         16  can tell you, see, we tried to give them a chance,

         17  but this is no good.  Now if the facilities are made

         18  for us to fail, and I will tell you why in a few

         19  minutes why this was meant to fail.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  We have got

         21  to move along, Sir.

         22                 MR. LIBUTSI:  Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  I get your

         24  point.

         25                 MR. LIBUTSI:  This were meant to fail
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          2  because they made it fail, this is black history,

          3  please, and we have got to educate the people.  I

          4  don't know why this boy says, Martin Luther King, we

          5  have a dream, black history month.  We have got to,

          6  many of us live here, it is a question for

          7  education.  This was made to fail, because I know in

          8  that proposal people made the point and said the

          9  Agreement of 1979.  That Agreement of 1979, it all

         10  came from the original proposal, that is why I say,

         11  please, make the original proposal available for us,

         12  because in that original document the brothers who

         13  are making it, they have made it quite clear, they

         14  have told me we have made a proposal which has a

         15  clause that vendors would move into that facility,

         16  they would have a voice in running that facility.

         17  Therefore it was not done that way, that is why I

         18  request for that original document.

         19                 Now Dominican men is like what we

         20  know the plantation time, and I know, I have got to

         21  tell you this, some might not like it, plantation

         22  time where the owner of the plantation has what we

         23  call the overseers.  He may be lying down somewhere

         24  in the Bahamas having a good time, with what we have

         25  are overseers, assistant overseers and other levels.
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          2    I have gone through this myself with people who

          3  run or the landlord for this facility.  These people

          4  who were made managers, were not managers, they were

          5  overseers, they have no say even if the thing is

          6  broken, these are overseers.  They go with the name

          7  management, they are not managers.  We do not have

          8  managers since this place was built, up until now.

          9  A manager is a person, what they are now applying

         10  for is business best management.  What we're

         11  advocating is business best management whereby the

         12  manager is there with the other managers if

         13  something goes wrong, we have to ask ourselves what

         14  we do.  When these people were taken from the street

         15  they knew they did not have the resources, and they

         16  knew they had no time to deal with them, and

         17  therefore, we were left as an example they failed. And

         18  before I close there is one point that I want to

         19  make clear, many of you are living in apartments,

         20  many of you have houses, you know when you don't pay

         21  your mortgage and you know how limited as you get

         22  from who owns the building.  Now many of you know

         23  your rent the apartments, if you rent the apartments

         24  it is up to the owner of the apartment to go after

         25  those who do not pay the rent.  When the owner of
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          2  the apartment leaves those people to go for five

          3  months, three months, without collecting or finding

          4  a way to evict them, waiting until the City today,

          5  as that what I have never seen in my life, they

          6  returned my rent.  I want you to put down as little

          7  Africa, I have paid my rent since I went there until

          8  yesterday when they returned my money back to me,

          9  and therefore, it was made to fail because if we

         10  were paying rent, and I never seen before an owner

         11  of a building who comes and says you guys those who

         12  are paying or not paying get out of here, I want you

         13  out.  It's up to you to get those who are not paying

         14  out.  Those who are paying they don't leave yet.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Okay, thank

         16  you very much for your testimony.  Do you want to

         17  say something?

         18                 MR. BURNSIDE:  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Let's move

         20  along ladies and gentlemen, we have to hear from a

         21  lot of people.

         22                 MR. BURNSIDE:  I just want to be

         23  clear that I'm not a present Mart merchant.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Okay.

         25                 MR. BURNSIDE:  I was one of the ones
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          2  that was evicted on the last round of the hold over

          3  by the City of New York, by the Department of

          4  Business Services.  So therefore, I am here in

          5  support of Mart merchants, Mart 125 merchants who

          6  are present, and I'm here, not only to support them,

          7  but to testify from the beginning.  In other words,

          8  I didn't come prepared.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  No, that is

         10  fine.

         11                 MR. BURNSIDE:  I can go from my

         12  heart.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Just give us

         14  your name for the record.

         15                 MR. BURNSIDE:  I will go from my

         16  heart.  My name is Mr. Albert Burnside.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  All right,

         18  thank you very much.  A couple of questions,

         19  Councilwoman Clarke, do you have a question?

         20                 MR. BURNSIDE:  She wants me to speak,

         21  do you want me to finish?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Yes, go

         23  ahead.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  You want to

         25  say something, go ahead.
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          2                 MR. BURNSIDE:  I was a Mart 125

          3  merchant for eight years, when I first moved into

          4  the Mart there was, as they said, a flood of water,

          5  I mean the roof had leaked for three years.  The

          6  third year that I was in there, they finally fixed

          7  it, but it is still continuing to leak.

          8                 But within my hold over case, when

          9  they issued me the hold over case of my specific

         10  business, from the Department of Business Services

         11  issued me the hold over, we did the research and we

         12  found that Mart 125 never had a certificate of

         13  occupancy.  I did the research, I went down to the

         14  Department of Business, I went down there and I did

         15  all the research.

         16                 But I'm here to support the fact that

         17  Mart 125 was never fully, properly advertised and

         18  marketed to the tourist community, to the full

         19  tourist, it was never marketed as a place of

         20  business as it could have been.  I'm here to say

         21  that the rents were overwhelming, when I went in I

         22  had a small space costing me $400, and then when I

         23  went to the back it was $600 per month, it gradually

         24  went up $100 each year, when I wound up getting out

         25  of there, I was paying $900 a month for rent, $900 a
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          2  month for rent for business, for business expense,

          3  which was, I'm sure the Mart was not designed for

          4  that from the beginning.  But overwhelming a lot of

          5  people could not afford it, fortunately, we were

          6  supported, I mean people from all over the world

          7  came to my business.  My business is now in Macy's

          8  the same articles that I sold are sold at

          9  Blackberries in Macy's in the basement, so I know I

         10  had a successful business.

         11                 It's just that the fact that the City

         12  of New York as soon as it was taken over by the

         13  Business Services from HUDC, planned to dismantle,

         14  and because of the dismantlement and Request For

         15  Proposal to sell the property, that is the plan for

         16  Mart 125, because of other businesses of coming

         17  Uptown, they don't want black businesses on the

         18  strip, period, particularly small, entity like

         19  business to compete with them.  They would rather

         20  have Barnes and Nobles, The Gap, or anyone else to

         21  come up here so that they can't compete.

         22                 So therefore, what I am trying to say

         23  is that even though this was designed for the

         24  community, now that the large businesses are coming

         25  from Downtown to Uptown, they don't want to see
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          2  black, I'm going to be very honest with you all,

          3  they don't want to see black faces in high places

          4  and have people managing and operating their own

          5  businesses.  And that will spill over to the Latino

          6  community as well, eventually, maybe 10 or 20 years

          7  down the road too.

          8                 But what I'm trying to say for 125th

          9  Street this is the only entity that occupied at

         10  least 50 businesses under one roof.  Even though the

         11  rents were very high, we still maintained and

         12  operated, and we paid our rents whenever we could.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Okay.

         14                 MR. BURNSIDE:  But it was not managed

         15  properly.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Okay, do we

         17  have any questions?  Councilwoman.  We're also

         18  joined by Councilman Tom White from Queens, ladies

         19  and gentlemen.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  I just want

         21  to establish whether, in fact, at the  moment there

         22  is a market manager and/or overseer, whichever of

         23  the adjectives you want to describe what is

         24  happening at the market, is there anyone

         25  responsible, because of something that you just said
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          2  that rents were returned, so that we can understand

          3  what the permitters are here?  Who keeps the market

          4  clean, who keeps the market sanitary, who is

          5  responsible for all of that at the moment?

          6                 MR. STATON:  We do have a management

          7  team that is there.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Who are they?

          9                 MR. STATON:  They're MMS, that is the

         10  title. They're here.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Oh, all

         12  right, okay, I understand that the Market Managers

         13  will be up next, so I will direct my question to

         14  them.  Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Okay, thank

         16  you very much, thank you.  And now we have the

         17  Market Managers, ladies and gentlemen, Tarrik Shalee

         18  (phonetic) and Mr. Mahaden (phonetic).

         19                 MR. MAHADEN:  Good afternoon, first

         20  of all, to the Council.  Thank you very much for

         21  coming to support this hearing here in Harlem.  To

         22  our Council Member Bill Perkins, thank you for

         23  continuing to spearhead this situation.

         24                 I would like to first of all state

         25  that nothing that I say, I hope, will be construed
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          2  or misconstrued that I don't support self-

          3  determination.  I'm here in support of that 100

          4  percent, for good management, for the members,

          5  themselves, and for any outside, that is not our

          6  concern here.

          7                 I wasn't planning to speak, however,

          8  there were some things said that I thought the

          9  proper thing to say was to come up and at least give

         10  you some basics about who we are, how we got

         11  involved, what happened since we got involved, and

         12  where we are today.  Again, I am in support of the

         13  self- determination of the Mart.

         14                 We were called some two years ago by

         15  Deputy Mayor Rudy Washington.  We had no interest at

         16  that time in the Market, we have a Market on 116th

         17  Street, and we were asked to come in and help

         18  manager The Mart 125.  We had very little knowledge

         19  of Mart 125 in terms of its internal structure, it

         20  was being managed for 10 years prior to that by

         21  HUDC.  We came in, we said we weren't interested, we

         22  got another call from Deputy Mayor Washington, he

         23  said that if we didn't take over the management it

         24  would close. This was a Friday, March 29th, he said

         25  we would come in on April 1st, that Monday, the Mart
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          2  would close.

          3                 Our purpose of coming in, we had

          4  interest, no knowledge of the Mart in terms of what

          5  the internal structure was, what the problems were,

          6  other than if we didn't come in, it would close.  We

          7  came in and this is what we did, I came in myself as

          8  the manager on the site at the time, came in and

          9  looked at the records, the records indicate the rent

         10  roll was $180,000 behind.  There were no supplies at

         11  all and no one would supply the Mart with any

         12  supplies at all.  About half of the size of this

         13  room was filled with garbage up to the light, so the

         14  garbage, no supplier, no vendors would come in and

         15  supply even toilet paper, nothing was in the market

         16  and no one couldn't get anything in there, all the

         17  people couldn't get supplies.

         18                 We looked at every single contract

         19  that the Mart had and they were astronomical.  They

         20  were paying $2,500 a month for garbage pickup.  I

         21  immediately called the company that was supplying

         22  them.  I said, this is ridiculous come in, tore up

         23  the contract and said we wouldn't pay anymore than

         24  $750 a month to pickup garbage three times a week,

         25  till this day that is what we pay.  They had legal
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          2  fees of $2,500 a month, we don't know why they

          3  needed a lawyer inside the place why they needed a

          4  lawyer.

          5                 There were no supplies for cleaning,

          6  so what we did is we went to each and every vendor.

          7     Then I decided to meet with every single vendor

          8  in the Mart, one at a time, every single one of

          9  them, and I had that rent roll in front of me, I

         10  said, this is what you owe, however, we're not

         11  concerned with that, it's not my concern, we're only

         12  here to start where you're starting right now, you

         13  don't owe us anything, we're going to start from

         14  scratch, no matter what your bill was, and at that

         15  there people who owed as much as $10,000, let's not

         16  forget ourselves when we're talking the same thing.

         17                 So issuing, we came in and settled

         18  up, we're not going to be in the position the people

         19  before us were, so we're not going to allow you to

         20  pay us monthly, you pay us weekly, you will pay us

         21  by money order, no check.  We have a history of

         22  nothing but bounced checks here, so we're not going

         23  to accept anyone paying us, we will go on a month to

         24  month, so we can at least get stabile, so we can at

         25  least establish something in the community where
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          2  either we're going to be in business or not.  And

          3  from then on we did that, that was the first time in

          4  10 years they had collected the entire rent roll,

          5  $33,000 a month was the rent roll, that was the

          6  first time in 10 years that that rent roll had been

          7  collected.

          8                 So then we said, okay, they talked

          9  about the people wanted management, they wanted

         10  ULURP, we had opposed ULURP, we said no.  Let's not

         11  have ULURP because if we do we won't get the

         12  building, you won't get the building, no one will

         13  have the building.  They are going to sell it to the

         14  highest bidder, we don't have any money, you don't

         15  have any money, as long as we're dealing inside we

         16  can struggle to get our political people to come in

         17  and maybe we can work it out, and we're more

         18  interested in holding onto the management, that was

         19  not our concern.  We're only interested in the Mart

         20  not closing that was our only interest and it didn't

         21  close.

         22                 There were several things said about

         23  advertising, now I'm giving facts now, we advertised

         24  for six months, 20 spots a week on the radio, 20

         25  spots for six months and we have the records to
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          2  prove it.  They said that nothing was done, when we

          3  came in the heaters, there was no heat, we came in

          4  and if you go look now we dropped the heaters so

          5  that the heat could come in because as the door

          6  revolves, the revolving door, heat comes in.  So we

          7  dropped the heaters so it could heat, we fixed the

          8  air conditioners even though it was April, but it

          9  was in such a traumatic state that it was left in,

         10  that you just couldn't fix it on the income that was

         11  coming, so what we had to do was say that we would

         12  do it in piecemeal.  The restaurant area, all those

         13  chairs and stools that you saw there was new ones,

         14  we brought them in because it was raggedy and they

         15  had chairs that nobody wanted to sit in, they were

         16  greasy and dirty and no one wanted to sit in, so we

         17  brought brand new chairs and tables that looked nice

         18  and decent.  This is what we were doing when we came

         19  in as the management.

         20                 So when you begin to speak about

         21  management, let's be clear on some of the facts.

         22  The trust fund that they mentioned earlier, there

         23  was a trust fund for the area, we're the only people

         24  in 13 years that the Mart had been opened that ever

         25  put in any money in that trust fund, we put $16,000
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          2  in there, and we paid $13,000 to the BID, Business

          3  Improvement District, before we even came in that

          4  Monday, we gave a check for $13,000 for the BID, and

          5  $16,000 into the trust fund while we were there.

          6                 Now, again, I'm not even faulting

          7  with the merchants because see it's like this, here

          8  we're like in a frying pan, and then you have been

          9  in a frying pan for 10 years and someone comes along

         10  and says to you I will get you out in 10 minutes,

         11  well, 10 minutes is a long time to fry, when you

         12  have been misused.  But nothing in the front, the

         13  whole heart for the Mart, to go in and do anything

         14  except to see that it was stable, and we weren't

         15  interested in making it a permanent site for people,

         16  we were interested in the original concept which was

         17  an incubator.  And we offered classes, we offered

         18  entrepreneur assistant program with certified State

         19  people for years to come in and train them for free

         20  in business, business planning, how to do business,

         21  how to market, how to do those things, we only got

         22  about three people to come to the classes out of the

         23  entire.

         24                 We extended the hours so that people

         25  could come in because the Mart was closing at seven
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          2  o'clock.  We said, look, let's keep it open from ten

          3  until ten at night to give additional time for

          4  people to come in and at least do some business.

          5  So, again, these are some of the areas, some of the

          6  concerns that we had in getting ready.  We had no

          7  interest at all in holding onto the Mart, and at

          8  this point right now, we're really not the managers,

          9  EDC is the managing agent and we're just there, they

         10  were really the managing agent at that time.  About

         11  maybe a year ago since New York EDC is managing the

         12  Mart, we do not manager the Mart, we're inside as

         13  managers inside, prior to that we were the managers,

         14  we made the decision for one year, we made the

         15  decision that is how some of the things we have is

         16  the refrigerators, what refrigerators we replaced

         17  brand new, those things came in while we were

         18  management.

         19                 So we just want to set the record

         20  straight clearly for what we did as a management

         21  team and although, again, when people are in a

         22  frying pan it is very difficult to tell them it's a

         23  process.  So again we're not here to say that we're

         24  not for self determination, we support self-

         25  determination 100 percent and we will support that
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          2  concern.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  I have a

          5  question or two.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Councilwoman,

          7  one moment. If everything is going so good, can you

          8  tell us why we're here?

          9                 MR. MAHADEN:  Sir, Sir, I didn't say

         10  everything, Sir, Sir, obviously, we are here because

         11  of the process with the ULURP, that is the first.  I

         12  didn't say that everything was so good, I was only

         13  verifying who we were and what we did in the first

         14  few that we were there and I can't account for the

         15  City, what the City's position is on the ULURP

         16  process nor can I account for what happened prior to

         17  our arrival.  I can only be accountable for 13

         18  months while we were there and I everything in

         19  document, not in just emotional responses, I have

         20  documented proof of what we did when we came in,

         21  that is all I came for.

         22                 When I heard our name, I wasn't going

         23  to speak until I heard someone say a few things

         24  regarding us, then I decided that I should respond,

         25  but I'm not here to defend the City nor am I here to
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          2  take anything away from the merchants.  I'm only

          3  here to state our position.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Councilwoman.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Clearly you

          6  were managers for the Market approximately 13 months

          7  and EDC decided to become the manager, there must

          8  have been discussion between the changing of the

          9  guards in terms of management, and what I would like

         10  to get from you, are when EDC decided to come in

         11  directly, what was their discussion that they would

         12  not no longer use you since you were doing, at

         13  least, some technical support to the businesses in

         14  the Mart?

         15                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, Ma'am, I think

         16  that, again, that some of the problem there was that

         17  there wasn't any discussion, really, I think what

         18  happened is when the merchants began to complain,

         19  they complained to DBS, so DBS brought EDC in.  We

         20  didn't ask for EDC, the merchants, themselves,

         21  didn't ask directly for EDC, they just registered

         22  complaints about the kind of things that weren't

         23  done, for example, the roof.  When we looked at the

         24  roof, it was a major job and the people would have

         25  had to put a band aid on something that needed a
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          2  major operation.  So what happened, in fact, was

          3  that none of us asked for EDC, we didn't ask for

          4  them and neither did the merchants, but when the

          5  dissatisfaction came it was an opportunity for the

          6  government to say, okay, we will put somebody in

          7  managing over the situation and that is how EDC came

          8  into being.  There was no dialogue between us, EDC,

          9  us and anyone, except when they just brought them in

         10  and that is how they came.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  You explained

         12  that you still have a continuing role somehow within

         13  the Market itself, can you just clarify for us what

         14  is that role you are still in the Market, are you

         15  paid by EDC before you now pay, and if so, are there

         16  any reports required of you as the manager to EDC,

         17  and if there is a rent to be paid and it is paid

         18  directly to EDC, who in EDC should they be paying

         19  their rent to, because somebody just specified that

         20  their rent was returned?  So we want to get the

         21  whole picture and the eviction and what continued

         22  role do you have.

         23                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, Ma'am, in terms of

         24  the eviction and in terms of the rent, we don't

         25  collect rent from anybody, that is going through
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          2  EDC.  Any requests for anything in the building to

          3  be done in small maintenance is done through EDC, we

          4  really don't have no role in that other than to

          5  request if we need to money to fix that, we need

          6  this done.  I mean, prior to that we had the control

          7  over if there was something wrong we could just go

          8  ahead and sign a check for it and go ahead and make

          9  sure that it was satisfied.  However, EDC is in

         10  control there now, the only thing that we do is

         11  serve almost like a puppet in that situation in

         12  terms of EDC says we need to put in a request in

         13  order to get money for that, we have no real

         14  official role other than to be site manager.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Are you

         16  responsible for keeping the site clean, what are you

         17  responsible for?

         18                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, we do that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Are you paid

         20  for what you do?

         21                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, we do that.  The

         22  maintenance is under MMS and we're responsible for

         23  that, we request EDC X number of dollars to be able

         24  to clean, for maintenance, and they then give that

         25  check.  It's a multi- check a standard and it does
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          2  every month for maintenance.

          3                 UNIDENTIFIED PERSON:  How much?

          4                 MR. MAHADEN:  I don't know what the

          5  number is at this point, but it is nothing than

          6  paying the people that are there.  There is no

          7  extending number that a part that management gets or

          8  a part for maintenance.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  You know, I

         10  am asking the question, not the people behind you,

         11  so I would like for your answers to come to me

         12  because as we search for answers to position the

         13  City Council's role in this, I want to be clear

         14  about your role with EDC at the moment.  Secondly,

         15  if there is a contract for ULURP, did it give you a

         16  job description as to what would do and beyond that

         17  what you're not responsible for?  I'm trying the

         18  figure out, then had a management role, they changed

         19  that management role into, I don't want to use the

         20  word overseer, since the person who use overseer,

         21  used it in the negative term of what overseeing is,

         22  but as the quasi- management team to make sure the

         23  Market continues to grow.  In the returning of the

         24  checks that are now happening, prior to "eviction"

         25  what have they said?
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          2                 MR. MAHADEN:  Well, let me just say

          3  this again, there is absolutely, there is no

          4  dialogue in terms of that, we have no role in that,

          5  we don't have anything in the decision of the making

          6  of the checks, who gets it, how it goes, we have no

          7  decision in that, we have absolutely no decision in

          8  that process at all.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  I'm trying to

         10  figure out why would they keep you there then and

         11  pay you to be there if you have no role?

         12                 MR. MAHADEN:  Well, I think that

         13  question is best answered in terms of this whole

         14  ULURP process.  I think that what happened is that,

         15  you see, we opposed the New York process initially.

         16  The vendors opposed and then the meeting that took

         17  place in the meeting room opposed it, we determined

         18  that this was not a good idea.  See, so what

         19  happens, is once we knew it was a bad idea, and then

         20  once the merchants said this is what we want, then

         21  that opened the door for exactly what is going on

         22  now.  But we were opposed to that because we knew it

         23  wasn't going to be in our hands, it wasn't going to

         24  be in the merchants hands, and then it would be out

         25  of our hands.
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          2                 So, again, why are they paying us to

          3  be there? Because the process is still not

          4  completed.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  All right,

          6  thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Councilwoman

          8  Eldridge.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Thank you.

         10  I'm just going to go over some of the questions, I

         11  think, because I just don't quite understand.  When

         12  you say you are MMS, that is the Malcolm Shabazz

         13  Community Development Corporation, is that who you

         14  are?

         15                 MR. MAHADEN:  That is correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  There is a

         17  letter, unfortunately, as the Chairman has

         18  explained, the Commissioner, none of the City

         19  agencies that have to do with the Mart have agreed

         20  to come today.  So the one thing that we have today,

         21  is a letter from the Acting Commissioner of the

         22  Department of Business Services, and if we look

         23  through that and listen to your testimony, it is

         24  very fuzzy.

         25                 It says that the Department of
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          2  Business Services took possession of the building in

          3  1996 and EDC has assisted DBS with management

          4  responsibilities for the Mart.  Now who has hired

          5  you?

          6                 MR. MAHADEN:  Okay, we were

          7  originally brought in by DBS by the Department of

          8  Business Services.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  And do you

         10  have a contract with DBS?

         11                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, we had a contract

         12  up until April.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Up until

         14  April of this year.  And what were you paid then, a

         15  yearly fee?

         16                 MR. MAHADEN:  No, no, no, its an

         17  operation, based on the operational costs.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  What does

         19  that mean, the heating, the electricity - -

         20                 MR. MAHADEN:  That is right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: - -  the

         22  air?

         23                 MR. MAHADEN:  That is correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  And then

         25  just the operational costs has nothing to do with
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          2  the rents?

          3                 MR. MAHADEN:  That is correct.  Let

          4  me say this, Ms. Eldridge, it sounds to me like you

          5  couldn't get any answers from the City, and we're

          6  not a position to be able to answer either, because

          7  we don't the answer.  So I think that you're asking

          8  the wrong person, you're asking the right questions,

          9  but the wrong people.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Well, I'm

         11  just trying to understand because of their letter so

         12  it would make some sense.

         13                 MR. MAHADEN:  Well, in fairness, I

         14  think that you best respond to them if they sent a

         15  letter.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  But I want

         17   - -

         18                 MR. MAHADEN:  I haven't even seen the

         19  letter.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  But I want

         21  to understand if you see it the way, they say, the

         22  City has been in constant communication with the

         23  merchants through staff members who are at the Mart

         24  at least twice a week.

         25                 MR. MAHADEN:  Okay, that is not - -
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  That is not

          3  you?

          4                 MR. MAHADEN:  No, Ma'am.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Because

          6  then it says, an on- site manager, Malcolm Shabazz

          7  Community Development Corporation, that is you, and

          8  meetings hosted by DBS.

          9                 MR. MAHADEN:  Okay, well, I don't

         10  know of those meetings have taken place, at this

         11  point, you would have to ask the merchants.  And

         12  when you say twice a week, that is not us, because-

         13   -

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  That is

         15  right.  But they're implying their are DBS members

         16  at the Mart.

         17                 MR. MAHADEN:  Well, again,- -

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Wait a

         19  minute, if there were DBS staff members at the Mart,

         20  it would seem to me they would have some touch with

         21  you, since they identify you as the on- site

         22  manager.

         23                 MR. MAHADEN:  Certainly they would.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  I am simply

         25  asking you, do you see DBS staff members twice a
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          2  week at the Mart?

          3                 MR. MAHADEN:  I haven't seen them.

          4  Let me say this, I'm not there anymore.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  I'm asking

          6  you, it's very helpful for you to say no.  I'm not,

          7  it's just so we could know, if we're lucky enough to

          8  have some communication with DBS or EDC.

          9                 Another part of the letter says, to

         10  address the deterioration of the building, a course

         11  of necessary safety and structural repairs was

         12  begun, and this is after DBS took over the building

         13  in 1996.  It says, EDC through its facility manager.

         14    So that must not, is that you?

         15                 MR. MAHADEN:  No, EDC also had a

         16  facility manager.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Who was on-

         18  site?

         19                 MR. MAHADEN:  Right, who comes around

         20  day, that was his function, that wouldn't be our

         21  function again.  And again, I'm sorry, I think

         22  you're asking all the right questions, but you

         23  should propose the question to where you're

         24  receiving the letter from and those people who can

         25  respond to the questions.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Oh, I would

          3  like to, but they're not here.

          4                 MR. MAHADEN:  Well, - -

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  I'm just

          6  asking from your perspective.

          7                 MR. MAHADEN:  Well, I think you

          8  should extricate me from that, then because I can't

          9  answer them.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Well,

         11  you're just helping us because we're knowing then

         12  that it is something different.

         13                 What I'm asking you is, is there now

         14  a facility manager from EDC at the Mart?

         15                 MR. MAHADEN:  Is he here right now?

         16  I don't know.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  I don't

         18  mean this minute, but I mean in the last month?

         19                 MR. MAHADEN:  Well, if you're talking

         20  about Ron Day, yes, then he is somebody who is

         21  there.  And I don't know how often he is there, but

         22  we ask Ms. Rudy (phonetic) she can tell us how often

         23  she is there, because she is the on- site manager

         24  now, so we can her how often he is there, I don't

         25  know, I'm not there.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  All right

          3  that would be a help.  Maybe if the Chair would ask

          4  her, that would be a help.

          5                 MR. MAHADEN:  Okay, I understand that

          6  he is there almost every day.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Here is what

          8  we're going to do, all these questions, you are

          9  helping us.  We're not here to attack you, we're

         10  asking these questions to get pertinent information,

         11  and after the hearing is over, any answers that you

         12  folks have, come up to us, because now we, this

         13  Committee, will go back to my legal counsel, to the

         14  Administration and ask why?  How come, this is what

         15  we found out at the hearing, and we're going to do

         16  that, and we want answers from them.  So you are

         17  helping us and we appreciate your helping us.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  I just want

         19  to ask a few other questions.  When you said you

         20  bought furniture for the restaurant, where did you

         21  get the money for that?

         22                 MR. MAHADEN:  That money we took from

         23  the rent.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  I see, you

         25  didn't have to turn over the rent.
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          2                 MR. MAHADEN:  That is the only time,

          3  this is when we were managing, this was prior to

          4  EDC.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Yes.

          6                 MR. MAHADEN:  So at that time, if

          7  there was a problem, we could solve the problem.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  With the

          9  money that you collected for rent.

         10                 MR. MAHADEN:  Without calling

         11  somebody and saying, hey, I have got to solve this

         12  problem.  We could solve the problem. In other

         13  words, if somebody needed a refrigerator or some

         14  chairs, we could say, okay, we can do that, we

         15  didn't have to call and say, can we do that, can we

         16  put in a request, and that was our role at that

         17  time.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  So you

         19  could buy the furniture and then EDC made - -

         20                 MR. MAHADEN:  EDC was not involved at

         21  that time.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  So where

         23  did you get the money to fix the heating and the air

         24  conditioning?

         25                 MR. MAHADEN:  As I said, at that time

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            71

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  was the only time we got the rent roll ever, it's

          3  the only time we got the rent roll.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  That one

          5  month when you got the $33,000?

          6                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  For one

          8  month?

          9                 MR. MAHADEN:  That was a period of

         10  time, yes, from April on till probably August, until

         11  I think EDC started getting involved.  At that

         12  point, we were collecting rent roll and we received

         13  the roll.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  And were

         15  you evicting tenants at that time?

         16                 MR. MAHADEN:  No, no one got evicted

         17  while we were there.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Can you

         19  just explain why you gave $13,000 for the BID?

         20                 MR. MAHADEN:  Well, you know, we

         21  came, we were told, you know, that there was a

         22  Business Improvement District that help all, from

         23  the merchants all the way for the business on 125th

         24  Street.  So, of course, we were coming in and said,

         25  okay we're will certainly willing to help them, so
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          2  we gave a check that day.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  All right,

          4  so I'm just going to review this.  You had a

          5  contract with DBS to manage the Mart?

          6                 MR. MAHADEN:  That is correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  And you

          8  were able to take the rents and spend it whatever

          9  you wanted, you didn't really have to give the City

         10  back any of the rent money, you used that to

         11  maintain the Mart?

         12                 MR. MAHADEN:  I can't answer that

         13  question, no, I'm sorry, I can't answer that, not

         14  because I don't want to, because, no, do we

         15  understand, I can't answer that question because I

         16  don't know that answer, not because I don't want to,

         17  if I knew that answer I would tell you, I just don't

         18  know.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  Thank you,

         20  okay, thank you.  This is such a frustrating hearing

         21  because we don't have anybody from the City

         22  Administration.   Obviously, it seems to be the

         23  commitment to this Mart has never been there, and it

         24  is particularly ironic when we give almost a billion

         25  dollars to the Stock Exchange, and we know now we're
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          2  giving $50 million tax abatements, loans and

          3  everything else to CBS, HBO, and ViaCom and also

          4  those corporations, and we can't even get people to

          5  come to the hearing so we might be able to

          6  reorganize this Mart so that it makes some

          7  significant contribution to the economic health of

          8  this community.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  One more

         10  question.

         11                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, okay.  Yes, Sir,

         12  oh, I'm sorry, go right ahead.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Okay, exactly

         14  when was you managing company commissioned to

         15  manager this Mart?

         16                 MR. MAHADEN:  April of '96.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  April of '96?

         18                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, I believe, yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  To what?

         20                 MR. MAHADEN:  Until this April, but

         21  it was one year at a time April of '97, and then

         22  April '97 to April '98, and then April '98 to April

         23   '99.  So, at this point, I don't believe we are

         24  under contract at this time because we - -

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  April '96
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          2  through April '99?

          3                 MR. MAHADEN:  Say '98.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  '98?

          5                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, Sir.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Okay, now as

          7  you stated, when you took over the management there

          8  was arrears and things of that nature?

          9                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  How much was

         11  it?

         12                 MR. MAHADEN:  One hundred and eighty

         13  thousand dollars.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  In the arrear?

         15                 MR. MAHADEN:  That is correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  And what was

         17  the condition of the Mart at that time?

         18                 MR. MAHADEN:  Well, I thought I laid

         19  it out.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  No, I was

         21  here.

         22                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, okay, well, there

         23  was another condition the heating was set too high,

         24  there was no chairs where people could sit down

         25  properly, there was garbage piled up nine feet to
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          2  the ceiling, I guess almost to the ceiling in a room

          3  maybe in a room one- third this size, well, the

          4  offices maybe a less than that, but the garbage,

          5  they had no removal, no cleaning supplies.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Now the

          7  responsibility of maintaining the condition, the

          8  maintenance condition in terms of floors, et cetera,

          9  who was responsibility was that?

         10                 MR. MAHADEN:  At that time?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Yes.

         12                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, ours, yes.  When

         13  we came in April of '96, that was our

         14  responsibility.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  So you also

         16  had maintenance, too?

         17                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, Sir, management,

         18  total management.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Well you could

         20  be in the management position and contract out the

         21  maintenance.  Okay, now the information that I have

         22  here states that possibly public safety issues that

         23  you described, they're really public safety issues,

         24  there was heat, air conditioning, electricity,

         25  security.
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          2                 MR. MAHADEN:  Electricity, I'm not

          3  familiar with that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  But here is

          5  the thing, you know, I think one part about your

          6  testimony today, that I have a problem, and that is

          7  where your responsibility ends and where it began.

          8  Like even if you are a management company and you go

          9  into a particular business contract, I think it is

         10  your responsibility to also know what the problems

         11  are prior to and make some determination about your

         12  responsibility for how that is going to resolve

         13  itself as soon as you accept the responsibility.

         14                 MR. MAHADEN:  That is exactly what we

         15  did, Sir, that is how proceeded, that is exactly

         16  what we did.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Okay, so what

         18  was your - -

         19                 MR. MAHADEN:  The first thing we did

         20  is identify what the problems were we came in on

         21  Monday.  For example, we look at the entire, first

         22  of all, what kind of money was being spent in terms

         23  of why the suppliers weren't supplying, why we

         24  couldn't get the people to come and pick up the

         25  garbage, we needed to know it was a cost back, the
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          2  problem was it was a cost back.  Why, what is the

          3  problem with the radiators, what is the problem with

          4  the air conditioner, I mean, these are problems the

          5  vendors were telling us as I met with each and every

          6  one of them, where the problems lie, where they

          7  were, that was the first thing we did.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Okay.

          9                 MR. MAHADEN:  And then took on the

         10  responsibility of all the above, except the roof

         11  which was a major overhaul needed, which we couldn't

         12  work, and then we started asking questions, okay,

         13  now seeing that these problems existed to our coming

         14  and there is not enough income to handle it, then

         15  what is the next step to solve the problem, but all

         16  of the other problems, for example, the problems of

         17  garbage, and the problems of the seating

         18  arrangement, and the problems of refrigeration, the

         19  problem of lowering the heater, all of those

         20  problems, the problems of painting the front and

         21  having the place painted, all of that we took on

         22  that responsibility and had it done.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Okay, now you

         24  said the rent roll was $33,000 per month?

         25                 MR. MAHADEN:  That is correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Is that

          3  correct?

          4                 MR. MAHADEN:  That is correct, at

          5  that time, Sir. I don't know now, Sir, I'm not

          6  there.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  I know you're

          8  not there, I'm talking about the time that you were

          9  there from 4/96 to 4/98.

         10                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, Sir.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Okay, so from

         12  4/96 to 4/98  -

         13                 MR. MAHADEN:  No, from 4/96 till 8/96

         14  is when EDC got involved, prior to that - -

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  No, I'm not

         16  talking about EDC getting involved.

         17                 MR. MAHADEN:  Well that was only a

         18  four month period, four to five month period prior

         19  to EDC, so your talking of a period of five months.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  So you only

         21  did for five months?

         22                 MR. MAHADEN:  No, we were there, but

         23  at that point then the  negotiations with EDC

         24  started with the City and DBS and EDC.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Okay, you're

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            79

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  moving too fast for me, I just got to state where

          3  I'm at, for the four months you were the prime

          4  management?

          5                 MR. MAHADEN:  That is correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Prime

          7  management.

          8                 MR. MAHADEN:  That is correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  And there was

         10  a record of $33,000, and you had to spend this on

         11  fixing the refrigeration and chairs and maintenance

         12  and things of that nature.  Now, August, you said

         13  August?

         14                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, Sir.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: '96?

         16                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, Sir.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Who took over

         18  DBS?

         19                 MR. MAHADEN:  EDC, actually.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  EDC.  Okay,

         21  now how did they do that?  You're the manager, now

         22  hold it, now who started collecting the rent as of

         23  August?

         24                 MR. MAHADEN:  Now, let me say this,

         25  how that came about, I think you better ask the
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          2  merchants how that came about, because the next

          3  thing we knew we were told that DBS would be coming

          4  in and managing the properties.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  But who told

          6  you that?

          7                 MR. MAHADEN:  DBS, they told, we were

          8  told that EDC, that the City was bringing in EDC.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  So you had a

         10  meeting with DBS?

         11                 MR. MAHADEN:  No, I wasn't a part of

         12  it, I was just a site manager, I was not personally

         13  part of the meeting.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Well, who was,

         15  see I'm trying to get a transition here.

         16                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, Sir.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Because I was

         18  reading the history of the Mart, from EDC, the

         19  hiring of EDC, The 125th Street Mart Association,

         20  then back to hiring EDC, and then a recommendation,

         21  three proposals, one being turning it over to the

         22  merchants, 125th Street Merchants Association.  So

         23  I'm trying to follow it through so that in

         24  supporting of my colleagues, we don't want let that

         25  be the stop of them being successful.
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          2                 MR. MAHADEN:  Okay, Mr. White, let me

          3  say this, because it seems all the questions that

          4  you need answered you need to talk to the City and

          5  EDC, and, let me finish, and DBS, because the

          6  questions that you're asking me I can't answer.  I

          7  can only answer as related to the site manager, the

          8  person on site.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Who is was

         10  charge of this?

         11                 MR. MAHADEN:  Pardon me.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Who is that

         13  anyway?

         14                 MR. MAHADEN:  Orville Johnson

         15  (phonetic) he was the manager.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  So you worked

         17  for him?

         18                 MR. MAHADEN:  At that time, yes, he

         19  was my supervisor.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Young lady,

         21  what is your title?

         22                 MR. MAHADEN:  She is secondary site

         23  manager.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Your a site

         25  manager, and, Sir, you are?
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          2                 MR. MAHADEN:  I'm the former site

          3  manager.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  You're the

          5  former site manager.  When did you take over as site

          6  manager?

          7                 UNIDENTIFIED PERSON:  November of

          8   '97.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  November of

         10   '97?

         11                 UNIDENTIFIED PERSON:  Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Would you

         13  turn the mic to you so we can hear you?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Let me tell

         15  you why I am asking you these questions, I don't

         16  want you to feel on the spot, because there is a

         17  series of information that I have here at my

         18  disposal dealing with the chronology of the rents

         19  taking place and have taken place, and I just want

         20  to be clear for myself about those events.  Because

         21  if you're the manager, I understand what you are

         22  saying, I didn't have an opportunity or I didn't

         23  hear all the testimony, so I didn't ask the

         24  question.  I know that people would have to pay

         25  rent, and should pay rent like everybody else, and
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          2  when you don't pay rent you get evicted, that

          3  simple, so it's business people and business they

          4  would understand it.  Okay?

          5                 If somebody walks in the your store

          6  and they wanted to owe you for their goods, I'm

          7  quite sure that every business person ain't going to

          8  go for that, so when it's rent time, nobody is going

          9  for it, correct?

         10                 But I am concern about where do we go

         11  from here, where do we go from here, and the only

         12  way I can get some insight here, based upon where we

         13  have been?  And I'm just saying that, if you

         14  answered my questions, I won't have questioned you

         15  as long as I did, because you're not the manager,

         16  and I'm quite sure that whoever is the President of

         17  your company is the person that deals in the

         18  contracts and sits down and negotiates.

         19                 MR. MAHADEN:  That is correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  And she is not

         21  at that point, so I'm not going to beat up - -

         22                 MR. MAHADEN:  That is the point I

         23  made 10 minutes ago.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  But you didn't

         25  offer the information because the question wasn't
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          2  asked.

          3                 MR. MAHADEN: Right, that is right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  The

          5  information is you have to discuss that with the

          6  President and the manager representative. Okay?

          7                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, Sir.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  So, thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 MR. MAHADEN:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  I think there

         12  is one more question.  Quiet, please, we are joined

         13  by Councilman Michels from Manhattan, and your

         14  Borough President C. Virginia Fields.  Okay, we have

         15  one more question from Council Member Carrion.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chairman, and thank you Madam Borough President.

         18    Sometimes it's good to keep things, try to reduce

         19  them to their simplest form, and maybe that will

         20  help us understand what you're trying to say, and

         21  what some of the other people are trying to say, and

         22  what the heart of the problem is here.

         23                 You said that you came in and there

         24  were all these problems, and there were 10 years of

         25  rent arrears, and you were able to in your first
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          2  month to collect the entire rent roll, and you were

          3  there for all intents and purposes for two years,

          4  two years and there is still some hold over because

          5  the City has said to your company, why don't you

          6  leave an on- site manager and help us to run the

          7  daily operation of the Mart.

          8                 MR. MAHADEN:  However, for the past

          9  year and one half that has been done, but EDC has

         10  the actual overall manager.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Right.

         12                 MR. MAHADEN:  And our role has been

         13  reduced from that time until November of '97.  From

         14  November of '97 until now, our role has really

         15  reduced.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  The point of

         17  my recounting is to ask you a couple of questions.

         18  One, did you ever collect a complete rent roll after

         19  that one time?

         20                 MR. MAHADEN:  No, but very close to

         21  it, because people then began to fall into the habit

         22  of not paying.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  How long

         24  were you relatively successful collecting the rent?

         25                 MR. MAHADEN:  The first two, three

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            86

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  months, no, about four months relatively successful,

          3  somewhere close to the entire rent roll.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  And how

          5  severe do you think the arrearage?

          6                 MR. MAHADEN:  Well, we, in other

          7  words, what we found when we came, we didn't

          8  address, because we said that is done, that has been

          9  the previous.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  No, the new

         11  arrears after you took over?

         12                 MR. MAHADEN:  Oh, okay.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  How bad did

         14  it become again and for how long?

         15                 MR. MAHADEN:  I would say about 60

         16  percent paying.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:

         18  Consistently?

         19                 MR. MAHADEN:  Paying fairly

         20  consistently, about 60 percent.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay.  Given

         22  your experience then, do you think Mart 125 can be

         23  operated successfully?

         24                 MR. MAHADEN:  As is?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  No, I mean,
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          2  given your experience with a good manager, can

          3  somebody come into Mart 125 under the scenario of

          4  allowing the people from the community to come in,

          5  rent space, incubate a business and then move on

          6  with the ultimate intent of opening a storefront,

          7  and pursuing their American dream just like we all

          8  want to do, can that happen?

          9                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, I believe it could

         10  happen, Mr. Carrion, but I think clearly that is why

         11  few of the merchants were there.  The mind- set that

         12  there is there now, most of them are not in the

         13  mind- set, there is a core of people there who you

         14  could expect them to come in, be responsible,

         15  wonderful people who can market, who have a

         16  wonderful business, who are there, and there is

         17  another core of people who will just, they wouldn't

         18  pay the rent.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay, I

         20  think then the answer that I was hoping to get and

         21  elicit from you was whether or not it actually can

         22  be done, and you're saying that it can be done.

         23                 MR. MAHADEN:  I believe it can be

         24  done.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  And despite
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          2  your feelings.

          3                 MR. MAHADEN:  I believe it can be

          4  done.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  About

          6  personality - -

          7                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, Sir.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: - -  and

          9  people's intentions?

         10                 MR. MAHADEN:  Yes, Sir, I believe it

         11  can be done.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  So just for

         13  the record the gentleman who managed the Mart,

         14  thinks that it can be successful, and I think that

         15  is an important element of the record, regardless of

         16  what you think about the actual people that are in

         17  the market, that is your own personality conflicts.

         18                 MR. MAHADEN:  No, Sir, no, Sir,

         19  because that is not just my feelings that is based

         20  on some facts.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  I

         22  understand.

         23                 MR. MAHADEN:  Let's be clear on that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  I went out

         25  on a limb.
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          2                 MR. MAHADEN:  Okay.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Despite your

          4  experience you think it could be successful, it

          5  could be a successful Mart?

          6                 MR. MAHADEN:  In the total overall,

          7  yes, Sir.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Thank you,

          9  Sir.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Borough

         14  President.

         15                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS:  Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chairman and the member of the Economic

         17  Development Committee for coming up to Harlem to

         18  conduct this meeting, and this is done because of

         19  Council Member Perkins and I have discussed from

         20  time to time, despite efforts that continued to take

         21  place locally, until we get a City focused on it,

         22  because it is public property, we are not going to

         23  be able to move and get done at that Mart, what I

         24  think you will hear today what the community wants.

         25                 I would say this is a very important
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          2  resource to this community, and we have been able to

          3  hold onto it and not have it disposed of, not

          4  knowing what was going to be there, because of what

          5  it means for this community and what the initial

          6  intent was, it was to provide an opportunity to

          7  small retail businesses to be able to sell their

          8  merchandise, grow in stature, and eventually some

          9  people would move on and others would move in.

         10                 Now years of neglect, which I am sure

         11  you will hear today, for a number of reasons, have

         12  actually taken place at that Mart, but with all of

         13  the development that has taken place in Harlem,

         14  especially along 155th Street, I'm sure you have

         15  heard the Councilman say, and I certainly support

         16  that view, we cannot allow the Mart to be anything

         17  other than what it was initially designed for.    I

         18  think we all recognize the opportunity interested

         19  for local entrepreneurs in this community to have

         20  space and location to do business be on 125th

         21  Street.

         22                 So having said that, I know you heard

         23  the recommendation of the testimony by my staff

         24  earlier, so that they could be, represents my views,

         25  but with all the various individuals in the group
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          2  that I have spoken with and working with the Council

          3  member from the district, et cetera, I know that

          4  there is a way that we can come together to develop

          5  a plan that would allow for this to remain as a

          6  small retail market.  It has been happening in other

          7  cities, it is still happening in other parts of this

          8  City in the Borough, and so we know it can happen,

          9  and that is why I appreciate you taking the time to

         10  come today to examine this issue, and know that I'm

         11  hopeful and I know, along with my colleagues on the

         12  Council that we will come up with the answers and

         13  will move forward in this very important issue.

         14                 So thank you so very much, thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you,

         16  Borough President Fields.  We have a short slide

         17  presentation, and we would like Mr. Stephen Davies

         18  and Mr. Lionel McIntyre to set that up.  While doing

         19  that, we will have another witness and that will be

         20  Mr. Walter J. Edwards, Harlem Business Alliance,

         21  Inc., Mr. Edwards.  Would you like to testify, Mr.

         22  Edwards?  Thank you.

         23                 MR. EDWARDS:  Mr. Chairman, members

         24  of the Council, Honorable Perkins, Borough President

         25  Fields, and all who have taken time out from their
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          2  busy schedules to come here to support this hearing

          3  today.  First, I will read to you a letter that has

          4  been submitted to the Honorable Councilman, from the

          5  Harlem Business Alliance.

          6                  "Honorable Councilman Bill Perkins

          7  and the New York City Council,

          8                 The Harlem Business Alliance, Inc.

          9  Supports the self- determination of the small

         10  businesses located in Mart 125 in their effort in

         11  becoming a business cooperative.

         12                 To this goal, we lend the support of

         13  the Harlem Business Alliance membership in providing

         14  Technical Assistance to Mart 125 business.

         15                 We will be happy to partnership with

         16  other business groups, consultants, management teams

         17  and the City of New York, Department of Business

         18  Services to bring this project to reality."

         19                 I would like to state that the

         20  Council members that have come a long ways to give a

         21  possibility.  The one thing that has happened in our

         22  community is loss of confidence in government and

         23  government agency.  In our Association we constantly

         24  hear people come forward stating that they are

         25  afraid to present their views to City government,
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          2  State government, Federal government agencies,

          3  because they don't know how they would be responded

          4  to. So the confidence level is very low.

          5                 This Mart is set up to build

          6  confidence, confidence in its small businesses, as

          7  it has been done in the past, as we know somehow

          8  Fortune 500 companies started just as these

          9  businesses, with push carts.  So there are all kinds

         10  of opportunities here, and we must continue to

         11  support the small groups that are trying to lift

         12  themselves above the poverty level, with your

         13  support I know that this can go a very long way in

         14  starting this, please, continue.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you

         17  very much.  Thank you for those kind comments and

         18  the Council members that are here are from all over

         19  the City, and they're up here personally, and we

         20  have got other Council members that since have left,

         21  we're here to support your Borough President and

         22  your Council member of Harlem, Bill Perkins, we're

         23  here to listen and hopefully to do so with results.

         24                 Stephen Davies, do you have a

         25  presentation for us?
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          2                 MR. DAVIES:  Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Is it

          4  relatively short?

          5                 MR. DAVIES:  It can be short, yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Because we

          7  have nine more folks who want to testify after the

          8  presentation, and believe we're getting your

          9  message.

         10                 MR. DAVIES:  I'm going to get

         11  started.  I'm Stephen Davies, Vice President of

         12  Project In Public Spaces.  We are a non profit

         13  organization based here in New York City, we have

         14  been here for about 25 years.  Many of you know our

         15  work in existing public spaces around the City.

         16                 About 10 years ago we started a

         17  program called, The Public Market Collaborative,

         18  which is program to really strengthen the potential

         19  of both existing public markets around the country,

         20  as well as to help communities start new public

         21  markets.

         22                 So I come here today not as an expert

         23  about Mart 125, but as an advocate for public

         24  markets and to let you know that most of the

         25  discussions that have been brought up in the past
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          2  hour are taking place in cities around the country,

          3  that the cities are struggling with how to make

          4  their market more competitive, how to deal with

          5  capital improvements, how to better manage them, so

          6  they form a myriad, and personally, I am working in

          7  about a half of dozen markets right now working at

          8  all these issues.

          9                 To get to the topic of idea, but we

         10  have a book caller, "Project Public Markets and

         11  Communities Revitalization," which we published four

         12  years ago, it is now in its third printing, which

         13  gives an idea of the interest around the country.

         14  Also, we have had about 300 people come to a

         15  national conference in September.   Many of the

         16  speakers have talked about the great traditions of

         17  public markets around the world, they are really

         18  fundamental institutions and centers of community

         19  life in every part of the world.

         20                 In our country we have managed

         21  through chain stores and through large businesses,

         22  like supermarkets to basically make it more and more

         23  difficult for individual entrepreneurs to open

         24  businesses, and that is what one of the real values

         25  of public market is.  We're working on a public
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          2  market in Saint Louis now that is about the same

          3  size of a supermarket, it's going to employ 400

          4  people in eight businesses.

          5                 Most public markets are threefold,

          6  one is to create these wonderful places that people

          7  like to go to, and if any place in the City or

          8  interest in the world to a great market Harlem

          9  deserves a great market.  In addition, they help to

         10  stimulate all kinds of economic opportunity as a

         11  convention for people to own businesses and they

         12  become very important in communities for their

         13  cultural exchange.

         14                 For those of you who know of the flea

         15  market at Union Square know that the long history of

         16  this, how it really set a motion for the whole

         17  revitalization of Union Square.  Before this Union

         18  Square was filled with drug dealers.  The market

         19  moved in, the park was cleaned up, and there has

         20  been billions of dollars in development there.  So

         21  markets are a lot more than just a frill, they

         22  really are essential anchors in any kind of economic

         23  development strategy.

         24                 Cities are beginning to start them,

         25  to accept the economic revitalization processing in
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          2  the motion, and in New Jersey, they have started a

          3  community jazz festival and a very simple community

          4  market, a farmer's market every Tuesday night during

          5  summer.  And they have several vendors in this

          6  market have gone to open permanent businesses.

          7                 The opportunity to afford for all

          8  kinds of people to start businesses and operate

          9  businesses at a very low cost or a lower cost than

         10  it would cost to open a regular store, all kinds of

         11  different merchandise from food to craft, these are

         12  really, the type of market is only limited by the

         13  creativity of the community.

         14                 Now there are many types of markets,

         15  there are open air, covered, well, let me just

         16  through a few, quickly, and I will tell you a little

         17  about what is happening in some of the different

         18  cities.  This is in Saint Louis, this Sumar Market,

         19  150 years ago, they're now putting it out of City

         20  looking at establishing a non profit management for

         21  the markets.  We are looking at the merchandising

         22  and expanding the kinds of things that are sold in

         23  the market, and looking at about five or six million

         24  dollar investment in the facility.

         25                 You know markets start small, this is
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          2  125th Street. This is the 116th Street market where

          3  the vendors were still on the street, this is what

          4  it looked like.  Market are generally evolve from

          5  open air into covered and enclosed.

          6                 This is a street market in Chicago,

          7  the Maxwell Street Market, the university that

          8  controlled the land wanted to close the market, the

          9  vendors, very much like here, had rallied to support

         10  of the market and the City has developed a way to

         11  reinvest into the market, has reopened the business

         12  and it is very much successful.

         13                 This is a market in New Orleans,

         14  which is actually run by the Vietnamese families,

         15  they grow produce in their back yard.

         16                 A French market in New Orleans,

         17  again, very popular to its destination, very well

         18  marketed by the City, has been redoing the way they

         19  do the merchandise, has been changing the vamp of

         20  what they sell.

         21                 I'm just going to quickly go through

         22  these, but, you know, the are lessons, really every

         23  market is basically the same, whether it is this

         24  inner city market in Philadelphia, a Fire House

         25  converted to support small businesses, that the
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          2  lessons of these markets can really be something

          3  that you can take advantage of here, in Harlem.

          4                 The last couple of slides are just a

          5  high place market in Seattle, it has really been the

          6  most spectacular market in the country, this is

          7  where we have our National Conference.  And the

          8  amazing thing about this is that the City proposed

          9  to demolish this market and turn it into a parking

         10  lot in 1971.  And it was only through the citizen

         11  initiative to save the market that the market was

         12  saved, the new system of avenue was put into place,

         13  the market was reorganized and reinvigorated and is

         14  now really one of the great attractions, in Seattle

         15  today.

         16                 So, we think there is definitely

         17  possibility here and there is much to be learned

         18  from what the experience of other cities are.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you.

         21  It's encouraging to hear that throughout this

         22  country that markets are indeed viable, surviving,

         23  and making money and providing its services to the

         24  community.

         25                 MR. DAVIES:  Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Well we see

          3  these open air markets right outside of City Hall,

          4  in fact, in the Municipal Building there is an open

          5  air market.  There is an open air market in the

          6  World Trade Center in other parts of the City.  So

          7  we hope, and with your presentation, it gives us

          8  hope that we can go to the Administration and say,

          9  hey, look, see, the 125 Mart is there is vital and

         10  viable to the community.

         11                 And we thank you for it.

         12                 MR. DAVIES:  Yes. And what happened

         13  to some of the other markets that the needs for

         14  space in Mart 125 are not dissimilar.  There are

         15  needs for better City support to the open air market

         16  and market sites and it would be easier to open

         17  these markets.  Some of the other EDC markets have

         18  seen better days and definitely need our support.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you

         20  very much.  Any questions?  Mr. McIntyre, do you

         21  have something to say?

         22                 MR. MCINTYRE:  Yes.  My name is

         23  Lionel McIntyre, Director of the Urban Technical

         24  Assistance Project at Columbia University, the

         25  Director of the Graduate Program at the Graduate

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            101

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  School Harvard Technical Education.

          3                 First, I would like to thank you for

          4  inviting me to testify at the hearing, along with

          5  the other colleagues, and especially our Councilman,

          6  Bill Perkins, and our Borough President, C. Virginia

          7  Fields.  And we would like to especially thank them

          8  for involving us in this project.  We go back to

          9  what is involved in trying to trying to make some

         10  technical sense in what was happening at the Marts.

         11                 But I am going to briefly state that

         12  oftentimes for the whole of Mart 125 in the context

         13  of physical planning and design aspects.  In

         14  preparation of the City Council's Land Use Committee

         15  hearing on October 14th, 1998, we reviewed the

         16  circumstance surrounding issues relating to Mart 125

         17  and the City's proposed disposition.  And we feel

         18  strongly that the Mart 125 should remain a public

         19  market.  We concluded that there exist a tremendous

         20  opportunity to redevelopment in the Mart to a first

         21  class economic development project for the Harlem

         22  community and the City.

         23                 In Mart 125 we recognized that it has

         24  its number of problems that must be addressed, and

         25  one that we think played a significant role, not the
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          2  only role or the primary role, but a significant

          3  role in the difficult years of the past is the

          4  physical design of the building itself and what were

          5  some of the apparent defects in it.

          6                 When we presented a very preliminary

          7  sketches of possibilities and approaches that could

          8  be taken, the physical faults of the Mart are

          9  apparently defects in the original design, design

         10  and construction of the room system, and un-

         11  destination of the cooling and heating required by

         12  the closed air system at the Mart.

         13                 While serving at the facility this

         14  past fall, we found that there was approximately 36

         15  merchants at the Mart, 64 percent of the business

         16  that was being transacted was in the area of

         17  apparel, and they found that there was a wide

         18  distribution of different activities from apparel to

         19  accessories to miscellaneous retail services,

         20  personal services, business services, all equipment,

         21  communications, and easily train them, which is very

         22  interesting to see the diversity of the type of

         23  services that the Mart housed.

         24                 That the existing conditions of the

         25  Mart, though we can improve it, requires a
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          2  comprehensive and integrated plan that addresses

          3  management, financial and physical development.  And

          4  it is only through that integrated plan that it

          5  would be resolved because what we know of what the

          6  physical conditions of the Mart have been, as a

          7  result of the design defects, that that has

          8  aggravated the proper organizational functioning of

          9  the Mart as well.  To have leaky roofs, not to have

         10  enough air, they have resulted to that it was

         11  actually design as a tropical zone, and a tropical

         12  open air market shelter, really meant in New York

         13  met to it did not stand against the elements.

         14                 So in some ways we can look back on

         15  the 10 years of what was the experiences of the

         16  merchants as one that was really suffering at the

         17  hands of technicians, because one could not expect

         18  anyone to do good business in a building that didn't

         19  have a heating system in February.  So that led us

         20  to say that our role as technical assistance and at

         21  the invitation of Councilman Perkins and Borough

         22  President Fields, was to take a preliminary look at

         23  what was doable with the physical issues of the

         24  Mart, and we came up with a couple of things.

         25                 One was that the Mart can be made
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          2  successful by a complete physical overhaul.  And

          3  what we thing is that the entire system, that it is

          4  a building that has probably outlived its services

          5  in terms of the electrical systems and so forth, I

          6  mean, it is time that they be upgraded, it is

          7  nothing unusual.  This happens with most buildings

          8  in their life cycle have to be rehabilitated.  So,

          9  the systems themselves have to be updated,

         10  especially for technological adaptation.

         11                 The other fact is that the Mart

         12  actually is within a C4- 4 zone, and it was under

         13  built by 10,000 square feet.  So, in short, the Mart

         14  actually occupies 34,000 square feet and it has

         15  other zoning capacity and it has 10,000 additional

         16  square feet of building space, meaning that an extra

         17  floor could be actually put on top of that.

         18                 So we looked at that particular angle

         19  up, but what came to look at is what is the most

         20  cost- effective way in trying to improve the space,

         21  but then how do we make improvement of the space to

         22  improving the economic condition, and that was by

         23  looking inside the Mart and finding that you can

         24  actually build 3,000 square feet across the back

         25  half of the Mart on extending the mezzanine.  Three
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          2  thousand additional square feet, if it was charged

          3  at the City rate of $100 per square foot, would add

          4  a merely $270,000 a year additional rent to the

          5  building.

          6                 So translating the square footage of

          7  the building not only to good design, but also to

          8  how it actually improves economic viability to the

          9  building, which means that you could even envision a

         10  possibility of one, a profit in a very short time,

         11  and two, a possibility in a reduction of rents.

         12                 So that is doable, the numbers are in

         13  the first cut of this actually work.  We found that

         14  it is not rocket science to work it out.  What we

         15  have come up with, for example, one, that the rent

         16  value is calculated at $100 a square foot, totaling

         17  an estimated $580,000 of rental income a year.   The

         18  proposed design and expansion of the mezzanine level

         19  could yield an additional 3,000 square feet of

         20  space, which 2,700 square feet would be rent. The

         21  full area of available for rent is approximately

         22  9,000 in total up from 5,000.  The value, the

         23  projected rental income for a total with the

         24  expansion to $938,000 a year.  So that is a

         25  significant increase of $270,000 in potential rent,
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          2  and this can be done on the basis of one, creating a

          3  mix of incubator space, creating a mix of anchor

          4  space, and creating a mix of 36, at least, 36

          5  merchants stalls and tables, which mean that if you

          6  could only pay for a table space on a daily basis,

          7  could be accommodated in the facility with the

          8  reorganization of this design.  And this would mean

          9  that the anchor space could yield $200,000 of

         10  additional rent income and while the quality stalls

         11  is $468,000 worth of rental income.

         12                 Now how does all of this get taken

         13  care of?  That we look at the renovation cost and

         14  when we put the first cut on was that the estimated

         15  renovation and reconstruction costs of $1.1 to $1.8

         16  million to bring the new design in.  The operating

         17  maintenance costs is estimated at $320,000 a year.

         18  If we use the $1.1 million figure for the renovation

         19  cost, and that was actually saving you something,

         20  like hypothetically, empowerment zone, physical

         21  involvement bond issue or something, and you did

         22  that as a grant, then you have a Mart that actually

         23  have a rough cut of $320,000 maintenance cost, but

         24  you're trading in $938,000 worth of income, that is

         25  a different kind of picture, it's a different kind
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          2  of resource.

          3                 So the City's disposition, basically

          4  saying, how do you take from the many and give to

          5  the few to make a lot?  So one person will buy that

          6  same space and generate $900,000 worth of economic

          7  activity at the very minimum, where you have party

          8  merchants, an anchor business with at least five to

          9  ten employees, and an incubator space, actually

         10  generating new income, greater expenditure potential

         11  within a depressed community.

         12                 See the logic is, and I agree

         13  wholeheartedly with the crux of the Borough

         14  President's comments and the Councilmen, and that is

         15  that there is something still yet very much alive in

         16  Harlem, no matter which way you look at it, and that

         17  is to do it for public good.  And you have to be

         18  space on 125th Street where the public merchants can

         19  be done, because there is no market place going to

         20  the Bronx or anywhere that there is a potential of

         21  being this successful as 125th Street because, one,

         22  it is a regional thoroughfare, two, that is still a

         23  good commercial development is going upward and not

         24  downward, and the density of the housing

         25  redevelopment of the community has shown the
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          2  expenditure potentially of the community up just on

          3  the basis of re- entry of households.

          4                 So when we add all of those things

          5  up, we think that there are some solutions to the

          6  design problem, but, again, I will reiterate that

          7  the design problem is not the primary one, it is not

          8  the only one, but it is one that has to be addressed

          9  along with the others in order to make it

         10  successful, in order to provide a possibility for

         11  those who have sacrificed, the possibility now

         12  really to do some creative work at developing their

         13  businesses rather than suffering while they struggle

         14  and so I

         15  will just be comparing to.

         16                 I'm sorry, we had created some

         17  samples, my staff, Nicole Cochran who is here today,

         18  created some samples of how this could possibly be

         19  designed, and what we came up with was basically,

         20  and I will leave this for the Council, but what we

         21  came up with was looking at the existing floor plan

         22  of the Mart as it is, and looking at the conditions

         23  of the exterior of the Mart, the facades, and from

         24  there we took it to generate some design ideas that

         25  could possibly take place.  So this is being the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            109

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  existing condition.

          3                 Now on the facade treatment, one

          4  thing that the merchants complained about was the

          5  fact that you didn't have any display space, as you

          6  can see on the existing condition.  There is great

          7  possibility of creating glass walls here,

          8  repositioning the floor way where it is not

          9  difficult to get, to access the property, but also

         10  creating lower air and light within as well, where

         11  it could be what, and so you can come up with

         12  definite type of scenario of possible designs of the

         13  glass wall from.

         14                 Also, we came up with a scheme where

         15  we're presenting three dimensional with incubator

         16  space built across the back half of it, which could

         17  be glassed in and make the additional 2,700 square

         18  feet of rental space.  While at the same time

         19  pushing the booths back off of the doorway by 10

         20  feet in order to allow better circulation, because

         21  that is another big problem with accessing the Mart,

         22  and creating 36 booths and at the rear end creating

         23  an anchor space of 2,000 square feet, which is a

         24  sizable enough anchor space that could generate

         25  expendable income.  And so what you end up with is
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          2  something like a loft across the back, I mean, for

          3  the mezzanine, the restaurant, everything stays the

          4  same. They actually open up, the seats go on this

          5  end, you actually open up an amount there.  And if

          6  you will picture a glass wall in front so you have

          7  light coming into the second level.

          8                 The other thing is that in the heat

          9  and air situation in the Mart, you find it then be

         10  solved, because we have 3,000 square feet that is of

         11  the second level that is now walled off and allow

         12  you to create zoning loans where there is a capacity

         13  to contain the air and have good circulation.  So, I

         14  want to make clear that we produced these as

         15  ancillary architectural drawings as finding

         16  solutions, but just explore that there is a

         17  possibility, and any time that we figured it out, we

         18  know that with all of the resources of the City, the

         19  ability to build Battery Park City, I mean, what

         20  else, I mean, this is really very simple.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Mr. McIntyre,

         23  you're hired. Ladies and gentlemen, we have at least

         24  six more folks that want to testify and we will move

         25  forward with Coy LaSister, and Lloyd Douglas, and
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          2  then Ms. Constance Thornhill, if you want to step

          3  up, please, and take a seat?   If you could keep

          4  your comments brief, we would appreciate it.

          5                 MS. THORNHILL:  Good afternoon,

          6  everyone.  I just want to thank Councilman Perkins

          7  for allowing us to be here today. First, my comments

          8  are rhetorically positive aspects of Mart 125.

          9                 My name is Connie Thornhill.  I

         10  operate the WEE Pals Store at Mart 125, deal

         11  basically with personalizing t- shirts, caps, et

         12  cetera, and jackets.  Having been a tenant at Mart

         13  125 for over 10 years, I am extremely grateful and

         14  proud to have this opportunity to come before you,

         15  the Harlem community, on behalf of Mart 125.

         16  Because what you have here is a gift that should be

         17  treasured, and revered, and held onto at all costs.

         18  Since the status of the Mart has been a topic of

         19  discussion for some time now, I'm sure most of you

         20  know pretty much about the major issues that have

         21  cost many to presume that Mart 125 is a failure.

         22  Thus resulting in moves being taken to close it

         23  down.  In spite of all the negative aspects that

         24  have been pointed out regarding Mart 125, I would

         25  like to draw on the many positive aspects of those
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          2  worthwhile and much needed paving in the Mart.

          3                 From a personal point of view, and

          4  I'm sure that my fellow merchants who are

          5  tenaciously paying out will agree, Mart 125 has been

          6  extremely successful in many ways and has been an

          7  asset to the Harlem community far greater than you

          8  can ever imagine.

          9                 This has inspired me to try to

         10  demonstrate to you why you must do all that is in

         11  you power and whatever it takes to ensure that Mart

         12  125 survives and remains forever a part of your

         13  beautiful community.  We are desperately trying to

         14  make our businesses as viable and serviceable to our

         15  community as we possibly can, but we need your help,

         16  because our numbers are decreasing, our energies are

         17  waning, and our finances are being exhausted.

         18                 Based on my own accomplishments

         19  during my time here, I have certainly acquired a

         20  great deal of knowledge regarding wholesale and

         21  retail sales.  The problems of owning and operating

         22  one's own business, learning public relations while

         23  dealing with perfect strangers face- to- face on a

         24  daily basis, managing finances while trying to

         25  realize take home pay at the end of the week, there
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          2  is much, much more.  I believe, however, that this

          3  is what is expected when one tries to develop his or

          4  her own business.  And this is why we were given

          5  Mart 125, a place of dignity and shelter to make it

          6  happen.  And we must not deny our future descendants

          7  the right to the same opportunity.

          8                 In my opinion, Mart 125 is more than

          9  just an ordinary retail store.  It is more than just

         10  a shelter from the inclement weather, or a shortcut

         11  from 125th Street to 124th Street. From its

         12  inception Mart 125 has been and continues to be the

         13  center for some of the most of the brilliant and

         14  creative minds in the world today.  Many people are

         15  shopping here or just passing through have been

         16  heard to make such favorable comments on the

         17  merchandise as well as what they see and feel as a

         18  part of the Mart.  From young children to older

         19  adults they seem to feel free and at home. There is

         20  always an air of congeniality, well- being, and

         21  professionalism that is lacking in many business

         22  establishments. I personally encountered children of

         23  all ages on a daily basis looking to have some

         24  inscriptions placed on caps for teachers. Their

         25  enthusiasm and creative ideas are commendable.  I
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          2  feel that our presence and efforts will be

          3  instrumental in helping some of them in charting

          4  their future.  This is an obligation and

          5  responsibility for all of us.

          6                 We, the Mart 125 merchants, have been

          7  fortunate to be a part of the million man march, the

          8  million woman march, and the million vendor march.

          9  The world has witnessed the strength behind these

         10  grassroots of vendors.  We are surrounded by

         11  hundreds of churches and other religious

         12  institutions, schools and colleges, educational

         13  facilities of various natures.  Why then cannot this

         14  power be the force to work in some way to help Mart

         15  125, lift it up and support it?

         16                 The City may have erected the

         17  building, but we have built and must continue to

         18  build this precious gift.  The very architectural

         19  design of displayed out on the front of our building

         20  was created by Willow Park, one of our merchants,

         21  the late Ron Shonas.  Ron was a brilliant,

         22  intelligent artist and once said to me, I love the

         23  Mart, I'm never going to leave it.  Well, this

         24  created genius now speaks for him, but sadly, while

         25  more and more shops surrounding Mart 125 are glowing
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          2  so brightly, as you look up at Ron's design, you

          3  will notice that the lights in his creation are

          4  slowly fading away.  But even as the lights grow

          5  dimmer, our love and spirituality continues to be

          6  displayed as our restaurant serves the hungry and

          7  homeless, with delicious home cooked meals. This

          8  gesture on Morris's part has the most utmost respect

          9  of many needy people, but especially of the fellow

         10  merchants of Mart 125.

         11                 So I ask you, the community of

         12  Harlem, can you see your community without Mart 125?

         13    What can you do to help?  We ask your input and

         14  your support, your prayers in keeping Mart 125 right

         15  where it belongs.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you,

         18  Ma'am.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you

         20  very much. Folks, we are doing well, we're scheduled

         21  to be here until five o'clock and there are several

         22  other people that we need to hear from, so we're

         23  going to ask you the upcoming panelists to please

         24  abbreviate their testimony and to try to get closer

         25  to the heart of it because we really don't have the
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          2  time.  So, Mr. LaSister, I realize that you have a

          3  rather lengthy presentation to make in terms of your

          4  proposal, but we would appreciate if you give us the

          5  heart of it on the process?

          6                 MR. LASISTER:  Thank you.  I'm Coy

          7  LaSister, and I'm President and CEO of LaSoeur

          8  Management and Development Company, a Harlem based

          9  real estate company and a current resident of the

         10  Harlem community.

         11                 While I was a City official, and now

         12  that I am in the private sector as a business

         13  manager, I'm here today to really show my continuous

         14  support for us to come up with a consensus plan, a

         15  comprehensive plan for the revitalization of the

         16  Mart 125 facility.  I'm here actually to talk about,

         17  I have some 12 years experience working with the

         18  Mart, while I was at the Community Service Society,

         19  I was one of the street organizers that helped to

         20  organize the merchants, the street vendors into the

         21  Mart.  We also came up with a business training,

         22  technical assistance program to initially provide

         23  the initial tenants of the Mart some business

         24  training.

         25                 And I can tell you at the initial
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          2  start of the Mart, the concept was to provide some

          3  space for street vendors and opportunities for them

          4  to realize their commercial dream.  It also was to

          5  eventually turn that market facility over to the

          6  tenant owner and managed cooperative, that was the

          7  intent of the original Board of Estimate Resolution

          8  when the Mart facility was initially established.

          9                 When it was originally established

         10  there was some 50 vendors that had successfully

         11  completed a series of business training and

         12  technical assistance and entered into the Mart.  And

         13  I can tell you there are some questions that the

         14  City Council may hear today, had.  Now initially

         15  that particular Mart generator over $400,000 in

         16  gross record for rent receipts from the existing

         17  tenants.  Having been the Mayor's representative of

         18  Mart Facility Corporation, I can tell you that

         19  initially that that revenue was sufficient to meet

         20  the operating expenses of the building.  One of the

         21  biggest problems, and this was a little earlier,

         22  that initially that there was a poor design, that

         23  the facility was strapped with huge capital

         24  projects, that the roofing system was never

         25  constructed right, that the lighting was not
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          2  installed correctly, that the air conditioning was

          3  never installed initially, that the building never

          4  got a Certificate of Occupancy from the Building

          5  Department, because the City failed and the State

          6  institution that was in charged, failed to install a

          7  proper fire detection system, and also to actually

          8  take care of certain code and building code

          9  complying systems.  So the facility for some 12

         10  years has been operating without a C of O, or a

         11  proper C of O.

         12                 Now I know our parent company, out of

         13  New Orleans was hired by HUDC to provide, we have

         14  about 15 years of experience doing tenant owned and

         15  operated businesses.  We were brought in initially

         16  to provide some business training to the tenants and

         17  I can tell you that when we started the first couple

         18  of sessions we were then told to discontinue our

         19  services only because there was no money.  And I can

         20  tell you that the facility generated sufficient

         21  income initially.  I can, also, tell you that

         22  because of poor management this facility was never

         23  operated correctly, it never realized its full

         24  potential, the City never actually lived up to its

         25  responsibility in terms of moving forward to turn
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          2  over this facility to the tenant owned cooperative.

          3                 Now let me share with you the fact

          4  that I'm here to actually produce or to propose some

          5  solutions to the current situation.  Now the Mart

          6  Merchant Association are made up of some 35

          7  remaining market businesses, has presented a

          8  proposal to the City of New York, the Borough

          9  President, the Community Board, and the City Council

         10  to move forward in a comprehensive plan and strategy

         11  to convert the Mart facility over to a retail

         12  market, tenant- owned cooperative for the management

         13  and operation of the market place facility.

         14  Actually this proposal is within, in keeping with

         15  the original Board of Estimate Resolution for tenant

         16  owned cooperative managed facility.

         17                 The proposal received support from

         18  the Urban Business Assistance Corporation, Chase

         19  Manhattan Bank had come to the table to provide

         20  construction financing.  We also brought in retail

         21  market consultants from the French Market

         22  Corporation, as well as from, that was successful in

         23  the renovation and revitalization of the retail

         24  public markets in Paris, France, to the table and

         25  said to the City, look, we have an opportunity to
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          2  turn around the Mart and produce an economically

          3  viable market place here in Harlem.  The City

          4  ignored this proposal and decided to abort a No- BID

          5  contract, let me just say that again, a No- BID

          6  contract for the management of the facility run by a

          7  company out of the Mart.

          8                 The City, obviously, did not intend,

          9  that is, they gave them a six- month contract with

         10  an additional six- months to show that they had the

         11  ability to manage that Mart.  And I can tell you

         12  based on my review of the management, and I have had

         13  15 years in the property management business, that

         14  Mart has never been operated correctly or managed

         15  correctly from its inception, including all of the

         16  management companies that has come forward, they

         17  were under contract by the State agency and by the

         18  City of New York.

         19                 And I can tell you that that Mart has

         20  gone down tremendously in terms of its condition, in

         21  terms of the fact that there is no leasing policy in

         22  place to bring in new tenants to the vacant space,

         23  so almost half of the merchants have moved out of

         24  the Mart.  And that the City still has no consensus

         25  plan, and I actually commend Councilman Bill Perkins
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          2  and this Committee for coming out today.

          3                 Now the solution is the fact that a

          4  precedent has been set in the City of New York

          5  through the use of a tenant cooperative form of

          6  management operation of public market facilities.

          7  The tenant and retail cooperative business proposal

          8  for future redevelopment and revitalization of the

          9  Mart facility focus on the retention of the property

         10  use as a retail market facility, utilizing the

         11  successful form of tenant business cooperative

         12  structure as an economic development to address the

         13  management operation of the facility.

         14                 Now in the City  of New York, there

         15  are currently three wholesale cooperative markets,

         16  and one retail market that is operative by a

         17  cooperative.  Now I can tell you that those

         18  cooperative owned markets actually employ over some

         19  12,000 people City- wide, they generate close to $5

         20  billion in annual sales, and they generate close to

         21  $6 million in annual revenues for the City of New

         22  York.  And many of those cooperatives were formed as

         23  early as 1960s, so there is a precedent in the City

         24  of New York for this form of business ownership and

         25  management of public market facilities.
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          2                 I could tell you that the current

          3  proposal right now on the table looks at it from the

          4  comprehensive point of view, obviously, the facility

          5  needs to be redesigned, there has to be appropriate

          6  market technology design features put into the

          7  existing facility in order to maximize the market

          8  and its selling space, but also to make it

          9  attractive for those customers that come into the

         10  facility itself.  So that way if they feel

         11  comfortable in also putting, spending their money.

         12  There also has to be an appropriate business plan

         13  and a proper tenant mix with the types of goods and

         14  services that are necessary to make this market a

         15  marketable and economic viable institution.

         16                 We had estimated that it would cost

         17  $1.1 million to renovate the space because it is

         18  about $80 a square foot.  We also had proposed, in

         19  the proposal, to put in a second floor, and based on

         20  that second floor, Chase Manhattan Bank had agreed

         21  to put up the construction financing for that.

         22                 Now the benefits of a tenant-

         23  cooperative business form of management for the Mart

         24  facility are:

         25                 1.  The retention and expansion of
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          2  the 35 existing small business enterprises owned by

          3  African- American entrepreneurs and business owners.

          4                 2.  Retention of 100 direct and

          5  indirect jobs.

          6                 3.  Preservation and retention of the

          7  Mart 125 facility and a retail, public market and

          8  community institution.

          9                 4.   Retention of consumer services

         10  and increase commerce and trade through the

         11  expansion of goods and services to resident

         12  customers in the Harlem community.

         13                 5. Expansion of small business

         14  enterprises and job base within the 125th Street

         15  Commercial Corridor.

         16                 6.  Standardization and stabilization

         17  of annual revenue stream and business taxes to the

         18  City of New York.

         19                 7. Implementation of a community

         20  economic development project that maximizes the

         21  empowerment goals and objectives for small business

         22  enterprises and as an underlining basis for the

         23  creation of the Upper Manhattan Federal Empowerment

         24  Zone.

         25                 I would urge members of this Economic
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          2  Development Committee, City Council of the City of

          3  New York to support the tenant business cooperative

          4  and a comprehensive revitalization plan with the

          5  necessary public/private business and financial

          6  support as the community economic development

          7  strategy for the future of the Mart 125 Retail

          8  Market Facility.  I think the City, if they could

          9  invest in the mega companies in terms of tax

         10  incentives and millions of dollars that are spent to

         11  create big business in this town, they certainly

         12  could spend some money to take care of the capital

         13  needs and to take care of the necessary support that

         14  the existing tenants need to form a tenant

         15  cooperative by which giving them the opportunity to

         16  purchase their own space, and have some

         17  determination as to the future of this facility.

         18                 Mr. Chairman and members of the

         19  Committee, thank you very much.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Mr.

         21  Douglas, I want to beg your indulgence.  There is

         22  someone who has come to make a presentation, I

         23  believe you know, Ms. Sissy Williams, who has to

         24  leave almost immediately.  And if you don't mind, I

         25  would like to call her forward now so she can make
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          2  her presentation?

          3                 MR. LASISTER:  No problem, Mr.

          4  Chairman.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank

          6  you.

          7                 MS. WILLIAMS:  My name is Sissy

          8  Williams, and I was the private manager - -

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Bring

         10  the mic over to you.

         11                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Can you hear me now?

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Yes.

         13                 MS. WILLIAMS:  I was a private

         14  manager for Mart 125 for, I guess, about eight

         15  years.  I was brought in at its inception asked to

         16  lease it before it opened, and did that.  It was the

         17  idea of me bringing the street merchants in off of

         18  the street, and they wanted to come into Market and

         19  with that it was resolved that they should.

         20                 I can tell you a little bit more,

         21  sometime in August they moved in 73 merchants into

         22  the Mart, and two days later, they all wanted to

         23  leave.  They felt that there was no business, they

         24  didn't like the fact that they were out and the need

         25  to regulate it, and they realized that they were
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          2  more comfortable on 125th Street.  At that point

          3  HUDC realized that they were with a facility that

          4  they built with no one to be there, and a host of

          5  things happened after that point that cost

          6  tremendous money, tremendous energy and a whole

          7  reorganization of what Mart 125 was supposed to be.

          8  That was, I think, one of the major problems of the

          9  Mart from the very beginning.

         10                 We had to then figure a way to make

         11  them viable, that some of the work, and what we

         12  realized at the time was that as those transfer BIDs

         13  from all over the world were starting to, we were

         14  starting to hear that and we were realizing that we

         15  have something here in Harlem that nobody else had

         16  anywhere else, and we had to capitalize on it.  So I

         17  was again asked to spend some time and focus on

         18  getting more arts folks to come into the Mart,

         19  people who otherwise wouldn't think that they could

         20  become business people and they were able to try it

         21  out to see if they would take space, that concept

         22  worked.  I wound up getting those third merchants to

         23  sign that they could come during the weekend and

         24  they could work and they could make money, a fact

         25  that they were very happy with. I think totally that
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          2  was when the Mart was its most successful, when all

          3  those folks were in there, but I think that they

          4  required different services, a different aviance

          5  than what the Mart was originally built for.

          6                 It would require that you have air

          7  conditioning, it would require that you have

          8  telephone lines, it required that you advertise a

          9  lot more, and it would require that you don't have a

         10  garage because the way it was fixed up it was

         11  something that was more revolving, but each of those

         12  requirements cost money, and each of those

         13  requirements were never budgeted.

         14                 So from the point of the door opening

         15  till now, we still have the exact same issues.

         16  Those merchants who stayed faithful and realized

         17  that we were trying to do everything that we could

         18  to rectify some of those issues paid their rent.

         19  Those that didn't went to court, and the legal court

         20  system never supported HUDC's need to have them

         21  move.  So we had lots of merchants who were never

         22  evicted.  We believe that we went to housing court,

         23  we never heard from our support, we received an

         24  housing court issue, we met with numerous judges and

         25  discussed the issue that you're actually causing a
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          2  greater problem than it would be, because there are

          3  some people who are never going to pay rent, we

          4  can't have, we were ineffective with having that

          5  happen.

          6                 So the next problem was that we were

          7  paying legal fees.  The gentleman who was property

          8  manager, when he took over, it was $25,000 in legal

          9  fees, that never cease to not be, so that was the

         10  other issue.  The other mounting issue was,

         11  obviously, the mechanical that didn't work.  It made

         12  it unbearable to make one feel good about coming

         13  into work.  It was a point that those mechanical

         14  systems were totally failing, the HUDC Board, HUDC,

         15  and New York City, in particular, would not fund

         16  another dime.  Lots of the merchants had great

         17  relationships with politicians who pushed us to try

         18  to fix different areas in the facility, but they

         19  also were not bringing in or generating any income

         20  or any dollars to make anything differently happen.

         21  The air system was failing, you could go in their at

         22  any time and come out your clothes would reek of

         23  grease and the merchants retail would reek with

         24  grease.  The air conditioning and heating system

         25  weren't working, the downstairs was freezing cold
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          2  and the upstairs was blazing hot, we could have

          3  avert that problem.  The roof was leaking and it had

          4  been leaking since we had been in there and there

          5  have been several attempts to fix it, but the real

          6  fix was to do the whole roof over.

          7                 I think that, do public markets work,

          8  my last comment would be they absolutely work.

          9  There are many things that you do to generate the

         10  best possible solution.  I think what we did,

         11  another disservice we did, is we acquiesced to every

         12  area that the merchants brought to us to try to

         13  correct.  In my mind today, as I look back, I don't

         14  think that was the right thing to do, I think we

         15  should have taken our time to move forward, because

         16  to help entrepreneurs become stronger in what they

         17  do, they need training, they need technical

         18  assistance, and they need educating. And what we did

         19  was we forced merchants who maybe didn't have all of

         20  those abilities into permanent situations where we

         21  were building walls and we building doors and

         22  putting in furniture that cost thousands of dollars

         23  without having a real foundation, without spending

         24  some of that money on them, taking our time, making

         25  sure that this facility was what it needed to be,
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          2  that they had all the skills that they needed before

          3  we started to put in telephone lines and working out

          4  the credit cards for people who just started a

          5  business.

          6                 So in my mind there is a process, and

          7  it is not a fast process, it is very slow and we

          8  need ability of an entrepreneur.  And I think going

          9  forward, even with a new building looking at that,

         10  to have someone who has no knowledge, they have a

         11  great idea, and they could possibly be the best

         12  merchant they could be if all the other things were

         13  in place.  And I think we jumped from A to Z, and I

         14  think we did that in our zest to make that market

         15  work, because it was everyone's intent to be the

         16  best that could be, including 125th Street, and that

         17  it be owned by entrepreneurs.  Management, I think,

         18  was hired long before I came, but it was always this

         19  need to want to have African- Americans is charge.

         20  But we didn't want to bring any other managing agent

         21  in a market on 125th Street, and I think we should

         22  have been consultants, and we should have had people

         23  who knew more about the business consulting the

         24  people who didn't to make proper managers who were

         25  likely not to have retail experience to get more
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          2  retail experience than someone had had.

          3                 So I just wanted to share on this,

          4  those are some of the areas that I think that we

          5  were remiss about, but that going forward when we

          6  have 125th Street Market open, now that we realize

          7  the City of New York can see the need, with some of

          8  these other areas need to considered and sort of

          9  take our time in building a market place that makes

         10  sense to all of in the urban area, management,

         11  merchants, and the structure of the facility.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you

         13  very much, Ma'am. Mr. Douglas.

         14                 MR. DOUGLAS:  Thank you.  Good

         15  afternoon.  My name is Lloyd Douglas.  I am a

         16  business consultant, who had functioned in Harlem,

         17  and who has been involved in business development

         18  activities in New York for over 25 years.

         19                 I am the President of Lloyd Douglas

         20  Consultant Company which designs and implements

         21  effective minority business development programs

         22  throughout the New York Metropolitan Area.

         23                 It is indeed ironic to come before

         24  you to speak about Mart 125 some 25 years later.

         25  Mart 125 is the brain child of a few of us from more
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          2  than 25 years or so ago.

          3                 Some of the distinguished political

          4  leaders of that time, includimg the departed City

          5  Councilman Frederick Samuel, the very able and

          6  current Congressman Charles Rangel, the brilliant

          7  former Deputy Mayor Basil Paterson, the dynamic

          8  former Borough President Percy Sutton, the very

          9  effective former Mayor of New York, David Dinkins,

         10  former attorney Hope Stevens, former Judge Royal

         11  Wingate, former State Senator, now New York State

         12  Comptroller, H. Carl McCall, Reverend William James,

         13  the businessman James Dowdy, the Black Power

         14  Advocate Omar Ahmend, and many, many others.  With

         15  strong support of the elected officials, the

         16  business persons and community leaders from all

         17  walks of life, the project took shape.

         18                 The original concept was to have been

         19  a multi- level facility, with heating and air

         20  conditioning, that would be built with public and

         21  private sector funds, and owned and operated by the

         22  merchants themselves, in the form of a cooperative

         23  economic venture, UJAMMA.

         24                 The notion was derived from one of

         25  the Kwaida Principles of UJAMAA, cooperative
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          2  economics, known today as one of the seven

          3  principles of the Nguzo Saba of the Kwanzaa Holiday

          4  that is celebrated by many African- Americans around

          5  the Christmas Season.

          6                 The problems with Mart 125 started,

          7  in my opinion, with the rejection of the concept of

          8  vendor ownership and control by the powers that be

          9  at that time.  And, number two, the over reliance on

         10  the public sector financing for the construction and

         11  operation of the facility.

         12                 Subsequently, the then Harlem Urban

         13  Development Corporation, HUDC, a subsidy of the New

         14  York State Urban Development Corporation, became

         15  responsible for overseeing the construction and

         16  operation of the Mart.

         17                 Most of what happened from then is

         18  well documented publicly.

         19                 Now going forward.  Going forward

         20  from where we are, I think we need a community

         21  center plan based upon the principles of current

         22  African- American economic empowerment.  The

         23  empowerment fight some 20 years later, still has to

         24  be for the economic heart and soul of Harlem of the

         25  black community.  And those of you who are warriors
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          2  of the day, dawning your corporate pinstripes for

          3  the veteran Dashiki, must still give a hard fight

          4  for black entrepreneurship a place in the sun of

          5  economic revitalization of the inner cities of

          6  America.

          7                 Yes, we stand on the shoulders of

          8  those who came before us, but we must not be afraid

          9  to dream dreams that have not been dreamt before.

         10  Dreams of a thriving black metropolis, with some of

         11  us and our offsprings as the center of the new

         12  America, with black ownership and control of the

         13  communities of color.

         14                 Doing business with everyone,

         15  trading, building, financing, operating, working,

         16  protecting, promoting, legislating, managing and

         17  developing existing as well as new markets for our

         18  ideas, goods, products and services.

         19                 I believe that Mart 125 will come

         20  back again, the new Mart 125, bigger, better,

         21  upscale and profitable and successful.  Those of us

         22  in this room and others not here will have to take

         23  the responsibility for making it happen, soon.

         24                 I pledge to the City Council to come

         25  back home again to work with Councilman Perkins and
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          2  the others so committed, to give my time, my talent

          3  and some of my energy on behalf of this worthwhile

          4  endeavor.  Greater participation by African-

          5  Americans in the business sector of New York is

          6  clearly a legitimate, beneficial and desirable

          7  public policy goal.

          8                 While its not government's role to

          9  ensure that African- American businesses succeeds in

         10  the marketplace, it should not be government's role

         11  to create obstacles to the growth and development of

         12  such businesses or contribute, no matter how

         13  inadvertent to their failures.

         14                 I would suggest Councilman Perkins,

         15  that you and your colleagues convene a Task Force

         16  from both the public an private sector that would be

         17  charged with the responsibility of finding

         18  reasonable and effective solutions to Mart 125 and

         19  report back within 90 to 100 days with

         20  recommendations for action and implementation.

         21                 This venture is of great importance

         22  to the citizens of this community and this City.  I

         23  would be honored to serve with others on such an

         24  effort.

         25                 Thank you for the time, that you have
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          2  taken, to provide the kind of leadership that you

          3  and your colleagues are exhibiting.  Keep up the

          4  good work.

          5                 Thank you for the opportunity to make

          6  this presentation, and thank you for your time and

          7  attention.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you

          9  very much.  Ladies and gentlemen, we have a few

         10  others that want to speak, Joseph Mack and Rod

         11  Jackman, and Dorothy McSheen, please?

         12                 MR. MACK:  Committee Chairman,

         13  Honorable Bill Perkins, we appreciate the

         14  opportunity to come before you.  We thank you for

         15  convening a meeting of the City Council here in

         16  Harlem.  We are particularly thankful that you are

         17  doing it with regards to Mart 125.

         18                 I'm here primarily just to let you

         19  have an opportunity to ask me any questions that you

         20  may with regards to the legal proceedings that have

         21  been commenced against the merchants.  I have been

         22  representing them for the last few months and over

         23  the years I have represented the merchants, and I'm

         24  part of being responsible for the uncooperation and

         25  the ineffectiveness in court that the young lady,
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          2  who spoke two speakers before, alluded to.  She said

          3  that the court had been reluctant to be supportive

          4  of HUDC in there efforts to deal with the merchants

          5  in court.  I wanted to talk about that just briefly,

          6  and I'm going to try to take less than three to four

          7  minutes to do it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  That would be

          9  pretty good for a lawyer.

         10                 MR. MACK:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  And we

         12  appreciate that.

         13                 MR. MACK:  One, promises were broken

         14  and you heard the merchants tell you that promises

         15  were broken, lots of promises were broken, but I'm

         16  only going to talk about two.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  You're their

         18  attorney now, right?

         19                 MR. MACK:  Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Okay. Were

         21  you in court this morning?

         22                 MR. MACK:  I was in court this

         23  morning.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Okay.

         25  Continue, Sir.
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          2                 MR. MACK:  Everybody, it has been

          3  adjourned until February 25th.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  You will be

          5  back in court again?

          6                 MR. MACK:  Back in court again on

          7  February 25th.  We were in court two months ago.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  And what was

          9  the action, for eviction?

         10                 MR. MACK:  They brought an action for

         11  non- payment of rent against some 18 to 20 tenants,

         12  all those actions were dismissed.  There is a

         13  decision by Judge Sarah Lee Evans in that matter.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Were they

         15  dismissed because they, indeed, didn't pay their

         16  rent?

         17                 MR. MACK:  It was dismissed because

         18  the Judge felt that the people were in the wrong

         19  court, with the wrong matter before, and not a

         20  proper matter the be heard in a the summary

         21  preceding, that is what her decision said, but I

         22  will talk about that a little bit and you will

         23  understand why she made that decision.

         24                 Now these broken promises that I'm

         25  going to talk about, and I'm only going to talk
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          2  about two, they, in 1979, I think it was, they

          3  entered, the City of New York entered into a

          4  contract with the merchants.  The merchants were out

          5  on the street, let's see, that is March 29, 1982

          6  that I'm talking about, merchants were out on the

          7  street, and they didn't want them on the street,

          8  they were all up and down on 125th Street.  What is

          9  responsible for the revitalization of 125th Street,

         10  and I live in Harlem, was the merchants who were

         11  selling goods up and down the street.  They didn't

         12  want them selling goods, but they brought people to

         13  125th Street, the merchants who were complaining

         14  about the people in the street out in front of their

         15  stores were part of, benefitted from them being

         16  there and bringing people there, lots of people came

         17  to 125th Street.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Wasn't the

         19  argument then, correct me if I'm wrong, only being a

         20  devil's advocate, that the folks out on the street

         21  weren't paying the tax, the same taxes that the

         22  folks were paying, the businessmen, inside?

         23                 MR. MACK:  They said that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Okay.

         25                 MR. MACK:  They said that, and so the
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          2  merchants were pressed to come in and in order to

          3  get the merchants to come in they were made

          4  promises, and these promises were embodied in the

          5  contract, they said, two things would do, come in

          6  here and take some space here and we will give you

          7  lease, a lease.  They didn't give a lease, that is

          8  the one promise that was broken that I'm talking

          9  about.

         10                 The second promise that was broken,

         11  they promised them that, look, we don't want to

         12  manage this Mart, we want you to manage this Mart

         13  and we will train you do so.  That is the second

         14  promise that was broken, and those are the only two

         15  that I'm going to talk about, and if the City right

         16  now would conform to those two promises, I think all

         17  the rest of this would be resolved.

         18                 Now, what has been the constant

         19  threat that you have heard here, and I have listened

         20  to maybe a couple of hours of this testimony here,

         21  myself, after I came back from court Downtown.  And

         22  the common threat that I heard was poor management,

         23  poor management.  You expect it to be poor, people

         24  who knew nothing about what was going on here, were

         25  coming up to manage people who probably knew more
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          2  about what they were supposed to be doing than they

          3  did.  It would have been so much simpler matter to

          4  train these folks and let them take over the

          5  management, take a net lease, if you want, that is

          6  one way that you can do it, or the other way that we

          7  tend to favor now, as Mr. LaSister presented to you

          8  just a few minutes ago, co- op the Mart, you have

          9  experience with it, you know what co- ops look like,

         10  settle that up with the merchants.

         11                 All right.  Now, that contributed to

         12  the effective management, then because we're

         13  responsible for how it's managed, we're responsible.

         14    All right, now obviously there needs to be some

         15  reconstruction.   I was very much taken by the

         16  testimony of the, rather from Columbia and the

         17  presentation that all that needs to be taken into

         18  and it is consistent with what the merchants want to

         19  do. Now, that is basically our position.  Now, I

         20  could go on, but I won't because I said I was going

         21  to be brief, and so you can ask me questions about

         22  this, if you want.  We're responsible people.

         23                 Oh, three things need to be

         24  understood in return, in regards to that lease that

         25  they didn't give.  Instead of giving the lease, the
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          2  first thing they said, well, we don't really want to

          3  give them a lease, we will give them a license, and

          4  then they gave them a license where they drew up the

          5  contract, and that worked for a little while.  Then

          6  they said, you know what, that license gives them

          7  too much, we don't even want to give them a license,

          8  we want to give them a permit.  And so we can put

          9  them out any time we want to, let them in, they

         10  don't know when they're going to be there, all of

         11  this is programmed faith, and so that works against

         12  them when they come in the court and they have got

         13  this permit and they have got a big, bold statement

         14  across the thing that says that this does not give a

         15  lease hold interest.  The Judge looked at that, the

         16  Judge know what that means, if there is no lease

         17  hold interest, than you can't sue in this court, you

         18  go home, which is what she did.

         19                 They're back in court this time

         20  saying, now, well since you said it wasn't a lease,

         21  we're going to say it's a license now.  But you

         22  still got the same document, and it won't be earth

         23  shaken if she said, well, you know, on the facts

         24  that I'm listening to and you don't want it to be a

         25  license, you gave them a license, you took that
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          2  back, this obviously is intended to give them less

          3  than they had over here, and since it gives them

          4  that much less, well, no, I'm not going to hear this

          5  whole broken procedure, because she almost told them

          6  that last time.  She told them, well, you're going

          7  to bring preliminary proceeding for thing here,

          8  almost telling them right to face, don't bring this

          9  back into this court again.  But they're back there

         10  again, because they learn hard, but it is the same

         11  kind of mentality that you heard expressed here.

         12  But, well, even if the rain is coming down here,

         13  these people are supposed to pay their rent, even if

         14  this is happening, if you just call and can't get

         15  nobody here, they're still supposed to pay.

         16                 And you saw also the good faith on

         17  the participant, you bring in a new management team.

         18    You said we got new managers, all right, you all

         19  pay the rent, they say, all right, let's see what

         20  you are going to do.  They all pay the rent, and how

         21  long does he last, he said he had the responsibility

         22  for four months.  And then about that time, he was

         23  talking about the rent, when people see that you're

         24  not doing what you're supposed to.  These are good

         25  business people, some of them have been in business
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          2  for a long time.  And if you see, if I come to my

          3  place and the people don't provide no heat and don't

          4  provide, and if I have got a leak all over my place

          5  and there is nothing I can do about it, they're

          6  going to see me telling the landlord, I'm not going

          7  to pay for my commercial space either if it is not

          8  in a place where I can operate my business.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Attorney

         11  Mack, thank you for your presentation.  Let me ask

         12  you a few quick questions. The proceeding that you

         13  had this morning, is before the same Judge?

         14                 MR. MACK:  No, it's a brand new

         15  proceeding, and they especially scheduled it today,

         16  because they knew that you all were going to visit

         17  their place today, and that this hearing was going

         18  to be scheduled today, they scheduled it for a hold

         19  over proceeding of the First of February.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  It's a

         21  hold over proceeding or a non- payment?

         22                 MR. MACK:  It's a hold over.  They

         23  tried the non payment, now they're going to try the

         24  hold over.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Now what

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            145

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  is the difference, help us understand the

          3  difference?

          4                 MR. MACK:  A non- payment says I want

          5  money, you can walk in and pay the money any time,

          6  even after the judge said that you lost, you go hand

          7  the people the money and the case is over.

          8                 In a hold over the people are saying

          9  that I want my space, in one instance for a non-

         10  payment there has to be a landlord/tenant

         11  relationship.  If you walk in and say there is no

         12  landlord/tenant relationship, you're out of court.

         13  Or if I prove that there is no landlord/tenant

         14  relationship, you are out of court, no matter,

         15  nobody listens to anything yet.  First thing you

         16  have to understand is that you, the landlord, this

         17  is it.  This is a summary court, we have got a lot

         18  of people in it.  It's a short procedure and so if

         19  you don't do discovery and who all those kinds of

         20  things known as a summary proceeding, so we only

         21  want very small narrow issues there, and so that is

         22  the way that court in set up.

         23                 Now, the hold over says, well, maybe

         24  no landlord/tenant relationship exists, but under

         25  certain specified conditions under the statute, if
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          2  you want your space you can do it. So you try to,

          3  you have to fit yourself within those statutory

          4  exceptions, because normally they say we don't want

          5  to hear you at all if there is no landlord/tenant

          6  relationship, but under those special circumstances,

          7  and so one of them involves the license and so

          8  they're now trying to say that this is a license so

          9  that they can fit themselves into that special

         10  circumstance.  Just as they said the last time we

         11  went to court that this was a lease and this was

         12  rent, so that they could fit themselves into those,

         13  because that is what you have to tell the Judge.

         14  You have to tell him it's a lease and it's rent, or

         15  else he won't hear it.  So they put that in their

         16  papers, but the Judge looked at it and said, no,

         17  that is not what that is, you can put these people

         18  out any time you want to, so, obviously, it is not a

         19  lease, and you said right here in your document that

         20  it is not.

         21                 So those are the differences that we

         22  are dealing with, and those are the same kinds of

         23  consideration that you had to consider when she was

         24  complaining that the courts offering, everybody

         25  knows that the court is favorable to the City.  In
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          2  order for you to beat the City in court, you have

          3  got to, you know really shake them up a bit, because

          4  they are going to give the City the benefit of the

          5  doubt, essentially in all the cases that the City

          6  has before them.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Two

          8  rather quick questions, the City is represented by a

          9  private attorney?

         10                 MR. MACK:  Yes, it appears so.  The

         11  Corporation Counsel is not, and it is not even the

         12  normal, regular attorneys who represent the City in

         13  landlord/tenant court.  I didn't understand it too

         14  well, but that is the way the City runs their house,

         15  so I don't know how the Mayor chooses the people.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank

         17  you very much.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Counsel, I

         19  respect, as somebody appears, I'm Councilman Stanley

         20  Michels, who has appeared in defending tenants in

         21  landlord/tenant court.  The attorneys were not from

         22  HPD, Housing Preservation and Development?

         23                 MR. MACK:  No.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  They were

         25  not?
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          2                 MR. MACK:  No.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  But you have

          4  no idea who these attorneys were?

          5                 MR. MACK:  Yes, I knew who their name

          6  were, but I don't know who they were.  I can give

          7  you their names, if you would like.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Were they

          9  private or they were - -

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Let's

         11  have their names for the record, please?

         12                 MR. MACK:  They were - -

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  This is

         14  peculiar that they were not - -

         15                 MR. MACK: - -  Silver, Smith, and

         16  Verajallp, 261- -

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  The names of

         18  a law firm?

         19                 MR. MACK:  Yes, Silver, Smith, and

         20  Verajallp, V- E- R A- J- A- L- L- P, 261 Madison

         21  Avenue, 6th Floor, New York, New York.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So they have

         23  actually gone outside to hire outside counsel?

         24                 MR. MACK:  Apparently.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So they in a
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          2  sense, the Judge, who by the way who used to be with

          3  HPD and understanding the concepts that you're

          4  talking about, found that they have not proved any

          5  type of a relationship between the City.

          6                 MR. MACK:  Exactly.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  As far as

          8  landlord/tenant is concerned.  She did find with

          9  respect to a permit?  He used the word permit

         10  before.

         11                 MR. MACK:  Permit is what they put in

         12  the agreement, that is their word, that is not my

         13  word.  Their word that they use consistently

         14  throughout the agreement is permit.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So there is

         16  no documented agreement between the merchants and

         17  the City, is there?

         18                 MR. MACK:  That document is an

         19  agreement, and that agreement talks in terms of a

         20  permit, the permittee, and the permittor, I never

         21  even heard those thing, I spent a lot of time in

         22  landlord court too.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Me too, and

         24  I have never heard of any of them.

         25                 MR. MACK:  But I have never heard the
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          2  term permittee or permittor, until I saw it in this

          3  document.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So do you

          5  now say that she had told them that she was

          6  dismissing the case and told them to start - -

          7                 MR. MACK:  She already did it.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: - -  start a

          9  preliminary action?

         10                 MR. MACK:  Right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Do you have

         12  a copy of the agreement here?

         13                 MR. MACK: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Could we

         15  have that, have a copy made?

         16                 MR. MACK:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  The reason

         18  I'm asking you these questions is very simple, if

         19  they are to start a preliminary action, it gives us

         20  additional time in which to try to resolve this

         21  issue.  Because you could now be able to do

         22  discovery and completing and everything else.

         23                 MR. MACK:  Well, that is, but this

         24  was on the non payment.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Yes, I
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          2  understand.  No, hold over.

          3                 MR. MACK:  But now they brought a

          4  hold over.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  The hold

          6  over was dismissed you told me.

          7                 MR. MACK:  No, I told you the non-

          8  payment was dismissed.  They just brought the hold

          9  over today.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Okay.

         11                 MR. MACK:  I mean what today's

         12  current hearing appeared to look at.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  That would

         14  be returned in ruled in the same court.

         15                 MR. MACK:  Yes.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  It still

         17  gives you time.

         18                 MR. MACK:  And they may have problems

         19  staying there.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Yes, it

         21  sounds to me that they might have the same problems

         22  as the non- payment.

         23                 MR. MACK:  That is what I thought.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  It's the

         25  same concept, but if do bring a preliminary action,
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          2  we're trying to get an idea of how much time we have

          3  to operate here, because obviously this is first

          4  going to have to be made to the Administration, in

          5  some way, to say, look, let's rethink this whole

          6  thing, because you are not going to be very

          7  successful.

          8                 MR. MACK:  That was the next thing

          9  that I could do, because I said, what can the City

         10  Council do, encourage the Executive Department of

         11  the City of New York to negotiate with the

         12  merchants.  They really won't negotiate with us.  To

         13  give you an example, and you will be proud of your

         14  aunt.  When we were in court, they were trying to

         15  convince the Judge that it was about money.  I said,

         16  Judge it is not about money.  They said, yes, it is,

         17  the people won't pay the rent.  And so they had made

         18  an offer to me about amounts of money from rent and

         19  stuff, and so I said, I tell you what you do, I will

         20  accept that offer that you made, if you will

         21  withdraw your ULURP.  They wouldn't withdraw their

         22  ULURP, but this very intelligent, City Council that

         23  we have, disapproved their ULURP, and so they're

         24  without it anyway, and so now, I guess they decide,

         25  and mind you now, they have brought an action
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          2  against every tenant in the place.  They are trying

          3  to clean out, put everybody out.  The last time the

          4  actual - -

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:   Because

          6  they're not tenants, right, they're not really

          7  tenants?  The Judge has already found that they're

          8  not tenants?

          9                 MR. MACK:  The Judge has already

         10  found that that wasn't a lease.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  That is

         12  right.

         13                 MR. MACK:  That is another question.

         14  Now, we claim that in the original contract they had

         15  an obligation to do certain things and so they are

         16  going to be required to deal with that contract, as

         17  far as we're concern, because we said, look, Judge,

         18  we don't even get to this until they conform to this

         19  old contract. Give the leases, and then if they give

         20  the leases then they wouldn't be thrown out of court

         21  every time.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Then you're

         23  saying what I always have said, that even a lease is

         24  a contract, if the one side doesn't perform then the

         25  other side doesn't have to perform.  And I'm not
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          2  making any judgement here.

          3                 MR. MACK:  I think that is the

          4  judgement she made, because she also found, look,

          5  you can put them out any time you want to, 30 days

          6  notice, 10 days notice, no, no.  She also said that

          7  you can even come here and say I don't like you in

          8  this stall, be in this stall, I give you 10 days to

          9  tell you to move from this one to this one.  And

         10  they said, well, you don't even have exclusive

         11  occupancy of what you have got, and you do what you

         12  want to do.  And that is what the City has done,

         13  they have separated the management on lease outside

         14  from the payment, actually, there is no management

         15  of the Mart right now, and there further in breech

         16  of this original agreement which requires them to

         17  provide management, they're not really doing it.

         18  They're saying we will send this bunch of you to

         19  collect the rent, and then we will send this bunch

         20  up there to make you mop the floor and so forth, but

         21  there will be no management of the market at all.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So who would

         23  take the City who is representing the City?

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  That is

         25  a good question.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Thank you

          3  very much.  I think you're doing a good job.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Attorney

          5  Mack, let me go over this one more time, just so

          6  that we're clear.  The judge for the hold over,

          7  Judge Evans.

          8                 MR. MACK:  No, the judge for the non-

          9  payment, Judge Evans.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Oh, for

         11  the non payment, Judge Evans, will not necessarily

         12  be the judge for the hold over?

         13                 MR. MACK:  Not necessarily, because

         14  the Judge, it's just in the general park right now,

         15  and it hasn't been sent out and assigned to a judge.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  So what

         17  are the steps?

         18                 MR. MACK:  What is going to happen

         19  when we come back again, I have to file an answer, I

         20  haven't even filed an answer to this proceeding.

         21  They was demanding that I give them an answer in

         22  hand by the 16th, so by the 16th of February, I must

         23  file an answer.  The case will be on the calendar on

         24  the 25th.  If they do what they did the last time,

         25  they will make a motion for a summary judgement,
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          2  which is what they did last time.  When they made

          3  this motion for a summary judgement, I cross moved

          4  to dismiss, and she granted my motion to dismiss.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So you were

          6  in the motion part today?

          7                 MR. MACK:  No, that was then, that

          8  was a case, I'm talking two separate cases.  We're

          9  in the general part today, no motion, no nothing.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  The general

         11  part.  Okay.

         12                 MR. MACK:  Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  On 47th.

         14                 MR. MACK:  Yes, 52.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Ma'am, yes,

         16  go ahead.

         17                 MS. MCSHEEN:  Okay, thank you.  My

         18  name is Dorothy McSheen.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Keep it

         20  brief, we would appreciate it.

         21                 MS. MCSHEEN:  A community person, a

         22  very concerned community person, and especially

         23  about this Mart proposal.  The Mart is supposed an

         24  establishment, not an enterprise.  The Mart came

         25  into being, in focus in about 1986, and it also
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          2  happened to have seen something going into generate

          3  jobs for the community.

          4                 But after a while, we begin to see

          5  the laxness, we also saw that the Mart was not going

          6  to survive as it was supposed to be.  The merchants

          7  did not seem to have a secured feeling because of

          8  the laxness of how they were being treated as far as

          9  the maintenance of the Mart.  The merchants were

         10  short changed for sure.  We saw the shortcomings

         11  where the necessities was not given, for instance,

         12  your bathroom needs, which the bathroom needs were

         13  rarely given.  There were so many inequities that

         14  plagued the Mart. There was never an individual that

         15  you could speak with or even get any information

         16  from.

         17                 We have experienced at many times

         18  whenever we wanted to sit and have something to eat,

         19  that when the rain would fall, it would also rain

         20  inside the Mart profusely.  You could not sit there

         21  and enjoy anything.  This Mart was really not

         22  planned to become viable, but the merchants were

         23  very determined for the Mart to function.  We also

         24  realized the strategies that is used against the

         25  people so they will not be able to stay.  We know
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          2  that the small businesses are being crushed as these

          3  large cooperations come into being.  They had not

          4  even been given a chance to these small businesses,

          5  such as aid to get money from the empowerment zone.

          6                 Why the small people could not get

          7  the money?  We see that our tax dollars does not

          8  mean anything to the system, because we are short

          9  changed all of the time.  Those benefits, we hope,

         10  that the City will consider the hardship the

         11  merchants have encountered all the years they had to

         12  stay.  The Mart should first be given to those

         13  merchants without a fuss.  Somewhere the plans would

         14  be to come on whomever, the plans will be given to

         15  somewhere, would be given to the community, would

         16  have to be given to the community.  Those merchants

         17  should have first preference to the Mart.

         18                 We wonder how the City could take

         19  rent from the people who suffered all those

         20  inequities all of these years.  The City with good

         21  conscience should let every consideration given to

         22  the merchants, and whichever the conscience either

         23  is to the sum of the money or the Mart with better

         24  service.  We see all of the problems that has been

         25  before us, let us not crush more businesses, they
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          2  have helped to make our community viable, that it

          3  make it possible for others to establish and come

          4  into the community. These newcomers are taking away

          5  from the community, while the community's money

          6  stands  with the community.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you,

          8  Ma'am.  Ladies and gentlemen, we have five more

          9  speakers, and we will call them up now.  We have

         10  William Kitchen, Brian Holly, William A. Allen,

         11  Tiellie Madden, and Ms. Beilask.  Yes, Sir.

         12                 MR. KITCHEN:  My name is William

         13  Kitchen, and I think that, you, Mr. Lawyer, before

         14  you go, Mr. Lawyer,  I think you should invoke and

         15  show a cause right here, and invoked showing cause

         16  on the parties so that you can take an offensive

         17  rather than the defensive all the time.

         18                 With that said, I think that I would

         19  like to represent myself as a community resident

         20  with long bonds in the Harlem community as well as

         21  the South Bronx, and as well as a consultant for a

         22  very successful business that is run in Harlem here,

         23  that is probably only in terms of a minority

         24  business, only second to Harlem Savings Bank.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  What is your
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          2  business, Sir?

          3                 MR. KITCHEN:  We had meats in the

          4  Harlem community here, and what we do is service

          5  mostly restaurants in Harlem, and this was a

          6  business run by someone who came to Harlem some 20

          7  or 30 years ago, and was successful in running a

          8  multi- million dollar enterprise right now.

          9                 We did try to get some of the

         10  promised zone money, but that money is, again,

         11  allocated to other people.  And saying all of that,

         12  I would like to say that as a person that is

         13  concerned with what the Council can specifically, I

         14  am ashamed to have to sit here all this time to

         15  listen to people who have been in responsible

         16  positions be totally incompetent, totally out of it,

         17  when it comes to a small issue that could have been

         18  adjudicated in a way that the whole community, at

         19  large, could have been benefitted.  At this point, I

         20  don't want to get bogged down into really name

         21  calling or anything like that, because I think that

         22  probably everyone shares in this burden of guilt,

         23  the community, the politicians and the banks, who

         24  probably, as one gentleman came forward and said

         25  that Chase Manhattan is ready to put some money into
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          2  this endeavor.

          3                 I think that the people who are here

          4  from the Mart should endeavor to initiate a federal

          5  class action suit, and if you don't put together a

          6  federal class action suit in the southern district,

          7  which is at one and what they are saying to this

          8  process, and doing yourself and the community a

          9  disservice.  I think that the City Council could

         10  have been joined in that class action suit, to

         11  number one, to find out where all the money went

         12  that was supposed to service and rehabilitate the

         13  Mart.  Number two, in doing that, I think that the

         14  City Council should convene a special hearing to set

         15  aside, as Councilwoman Ronnie Eldridge has said, to

         16  specifically set aside money that would not only

         17  rehabilitate the 125th Mart, but would actually

         18  start the initiation of Municipal Bonds that would

         19  develop not only a corporation, that the whole

         20  community could develop revenue from, but a specific

         21  first African American Bank here in Harlem, rather

         22  than have Chase Manhattan come in and reap the

         23  benefits or money for the problem, actually develop

         24  a bank, with, again, the Council setting aside

         25  money, the corporate business 500, or African-
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          2  American businesses from Brooklyn to the South

          3  Bronx, to Harlem, you can work those dollars to not

          4  only the development of the plans that you have over

          5  there from this gentleman, but along with the class

          6  action suit because there has been civil rights

          7  violations here.

          8                 Develop this plan in such way that

          9  not only go to court had to throw out some the hold

         10  over proceedings that is going on, because if

         11  anyone, there more about assault and knowing

         12  anything about hold over actions, all you need to

         13  know is that, if you occupy any space, whether it is

         14  commercial or private for over 30 days, you're are a

         15  tenant, whether they like it or not.  It could on a

         16  lot, if you could put up a tent, nobody evicted you

         17  in 30 days, they would have to bring you a 30- day

         18  notice, and from notice and then pull the summary

         19  judgement against you.  All the money that they are

         20  paying that lawyer, or you all have been paying that

         21  lawyer, believe me, this could have been adjudicated

         22  pro se, pro se meaning on your own having a

         23  spokesman.  Okay?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Okay, Sir,

         25  thank you.
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          2                 MR. KITCHEN:  Mr. Perkins can

          3  initiate some of these ideals that I have outlined,

          4  which in summary are, to actually set up the first

          5  bank in Harlem, the first African- American bank

          6  with corporate bonds being earmarked from set aside

          7  money that the New York City Council can get from

          8  not only the private center, but the public center

          9  dollars.  And as Ms. Eldridge has said, put this

         10  money into the Harlem community for a bid, along

         11  with a federal class action suit that would be

         12  initiated by the Harlem community, if not the 125th

         13  Street Mart business people should stop calling

         14  themselves vendors, call yourself business people.

         15  With all of this being done the solution will be a

         16  remedy not only for it being a model for the 21st

         17  Century that we're going into, but for the shame,

         18  for the shame of what has not been done, that is by

         19  the politicians, the community at large, and as well

         20  as the so- called managers that have been in the

         21  Mart.

         22                 So with that, again, my name is

         23  William Kitchen, Mr. Perkins knows how to get in

         24  touch with me.  I would like to definitely, and I

         25  know Mr. Perkins for - -
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Brother

          3  Kitchen are childhood friends.

          4                 MR. KITCHEN: - -  and so we're quite

          5   - -

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Yes, we

          7  understand you, quite well.

          8                 MR. KITCHEN:  Also, at 17 years old I

          9  had an open door City policy at City Hall through

         10  Mr. Dave Ross, who was at that time a City Council

         11  leader.  So I share the shame, and I also share the

         12  future, and you can enact some of these ideals,

         13  believe me, there will be new names in New York

         14  City.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Sir, Mr.

         16  Allen.

         17                 MR. ALLEN:  I'm also a childhood

         18  friend of Councilman Perkins, and I will be very

         19  brief.  I just want to say that I think Lloyd

         20  Douglas had really said it best, and so I'm really

         21  not going to say too much, and I was very pleased

         22  with the presentation of my Council on behalf of the

         23  building.  I know that they have had a long struggle

         24  and they have been trying to get the right people to

         25  listen to them, so I just want to congratulate them
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          2  today because now they're going in the right

          3  direction.  And I think that Councilman Perkins has

          4  come into office, has been able to identify some of

          5  the problems now here to provide them necessary

          6  relations, because that has been here a long time,

          7  and I just want to congratulate him in his efforts

          8  in resolving this.

          9                 And I hope that you will be able to

         10  get past this issue, pretty much this seems like an

         11  issue with the Mayor's Office, so I wish you God

         12  speed and your ability as a Council to negotiate

         13  this issue with the Mayor's Office, and hopefully

         14  this will be resolve soon.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you.

         17                 MS. BEILASK:  Thank you, Council, and

         18  I just want to thank you for the endurance of the

         19  long day.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  He had to buy

         21  us dinner, you know.

         22                 MS. BEILASK:  I'm sorry, I didn't

         23  hear that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  I have to

         25  buy dinner for them.
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          2                 MS. BEILASK: Oh, okay, I thought we

          3  had to do something in there, we will all go.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  For the

          5  record, - -

          6                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  We will all

          7  go.

          8                 MS. BEILASK:  We will all go.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  It's on him.

         10  No, we will say we're talk to later.  But we're here

         11  and we're listening.

         12                 MS. BEILASK:  And with that, because

         13  these our lives that we are talking about.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Yes, Ma'am.

         15                 MS. BEILASK:  I was born and raised

         16  in this City, I go back when across the street used

         17  to be galleries, City galleries on Sunday.  I

         18  remember Ronnie, I forgot his last name now, - -

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Ronnie

         20  Holly.

         21                 MS. BEILASK: - -  Ronnie Holly had

         22  his own wooden glass door, well, you know that

         23  business is very profitable on 125th Street.  So

         24  when I had the offers of opportunity to do something

         25  on 125th Street, that I could hardly believe that I
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          2  could do business in my own community, but I was

          3  here long to kind of trade with my own people, that

          4  was very impressive to me.

          5                 I was one of the people that came

          6  into the Mart because they could not fill the space.

          7    I did floral work, I have the floral shop that is

          8  in the front of the Mart.  They asked me to come in

          9  the Mart, I said, great, this is a good opportunity

         10  because I had young children at the time, and

         11  perhaps that they could follow me and go on into

         12  business and just grow up and go to work, as we say

         13  in the community for a while, they could do

         14  something for their own.  I'm trying to be honest,

         15  because this is all we hear, as a community.  There

         16  is nothing wrong with an honest job, but it is

         17  nothing like knowing that you have your own

         18  business, and that kind of uplifted me.

         19                 And I have worked in the City

         20  Administration all the way from the Lindsey

         21  Administration up to the Dinkins.  I have been

         22  involved in the politics of my City, I know what is

         23  behind the City now.  So when EDC came in there,

         24  they were friends and I knew where their friendship

         25  lied, but I said to myself, look, let's not start
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          2  knocking each other, let's try to see if our boys on

          3  the block can get some help.  Well, I found out as I

          4  was in there that everybody was in there for

          5  themselves, and the poor people that came in there

          6  to invest their dollars and try to trade with one

          7  another, it was nothing left at the end of the day,

          8  and that saddened me, because I see over hundreds of

          9  businesses open and close with no profit, and how

         10  could we continue to show our young people that we

         11  are able to trade with one another and that we don't

         12  have to go to work, for why do you think we would

         13  for ourself when there was no profit for us, so it

         14  saddened me all of the time.

         15                 So I just wanted to take a moment, it

         16  is not going other be very long, but when I, HUDC,

         17  as I said, was a given benefit there, the young lady

         18  that testified here asked me to come into the

         19  flowers, because they were having their grand

         20  opening, their time was coming up and she wanted

         21  flowers all over the place, not thinking about

         22  community water for flowers, because there was no

         23  facility to even get water.  To my surprise, I went

         24  in thinking that I was having a chance to do

         25  business on 125th Street, so I went not even
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          2  thinking that there was no water.  Later on we found

          3  out there was no water, so they allowed me to get

          4  water from the sewer system, which I still get

          5  today, in order to get water for the flowers.  But

          6  trying to be encouraging and knowing the opportunity

          7  that I was blessed with, I continued to go to stand

          8  on that corner floor with no heat.  When a daughter

          9  went all the way up and didn't even have a place to

         10  hang your coat, but I continued to stay because I

         11  wanted the other people that come after me to see

         12  that we can do business, because we all just can't

         13  go to jail, you can't lock all of us up, somebody is

         14  going to be honest, and we need some jobs for

         15  somebody.  Okay?

         16                 I went and I have been standing up

         17  there for 13 years hoping that my children, and I

         18  have grands now that are in college, that will have

         19  a job in case they can't find out nothing in there.

         20  I have been ready to leave from a long time ago, but

         21  I was refused to leave to see that none of my people

         22  have something in my own neighborhood, which I told

         23  you I grew up and was raised there.

         24                 Now when the Leon came, and he asked,

         25  and I asked him personally, I don't have to say we,
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          2  well, Sir, I was glad that we had somebody else

          3  because HUDC was a training ground for them and all

          4  they did was try to rent off what was the top, I

          5  wanted to know what his program was.  So I asked

          6  him, I said, well, Sir, of course, I will pay my

          7  rent, but we can we look at the books that is going

          8  to happen in the Mart, what is going to happen?  He

          9  told me no, that was his business, he didn't answer

         10  to nobody.  So I said to him, well, you will not get

         11  my rent because the City records are public, and if

         12  you are going to take my rent, then I would like to

         13  know what is going to happen.

         14                 When they came in, MMS, when they

         15  came into the Mart they came in as a terrible thing

         16  from the beginning, and they found out that we

         17  weren't so stupid, they kind of backed off and they

         18  set the system moving there.  And things have been,

         19  that they have been, now they have gotten $3.5

         20  million to build something on 125th Street, after

         21  they got training in Mart 125, at our expense.  On

         22  the front of the Mart it says, voter registration

         23  for MMS, when did they rent space there, to put a

         24  sign up there?  I complained about all of these

         25  things.
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          2                 So I just want to thank you, again,

          3  for coming, and let you know that the struggle

          4  continues.  But whatever you do, remember, that that

          5  Mart belongs to the community, and, please, stay on

          6  top of it?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you.

          8  And our last speaker of today, unless anybody else

          9  wants to speak, is Rod Jackman, Mr. Jackman.

         10                 MR. JACKMAN:  Mr. Chair, Council

         11  members, the day is long so I will be brief.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you.

         13                 MR. JACKMAN:  And I begin by

         14  paraphrasing words of one former leader's, he said,

         15  Mayors come and Mayors go, but the life of the City

         16  goes on.  And so Mayor Koch has come and gone, the

         17  Board of Estimate has come and gone, Harlem Urban

         18  Development Corporation has come and gone, but this

         19  City and its basic obligations must go on, and that

         20  is the matter before us today.

         21                 Exactly 20 years ago, this City made

         22  a commitment that commitment was formalized in a

         23  memorandum of agreement, which was issued by the

         24  Board of Estimate in 1979.  The Board of Estimate

         25  then assigned the states over to the Development
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          2  Corporation to infinite its memorandum of agreement.

          3    As an agent of the State, the Harlem Development

          4  Corporation executed its own memorandum of agreement

          5  with the merchants, but once we cut through to the

          6  legal foundation, the essential concept remains

          7  refreshingly simple and direct.

          8                 The Board of Estimates memorandum of

          9  agreement and capsulated both in demand and a

         10  promise.  The demand was for a tenant of merchants

         11  to be relocated from the sidewalks of 125th Street,

         12  the merchants complied with that demand.  For its

         13  part the City offered incentives.  First, the City

         14  promised to create a public market for those

         15  merchants who agreed to move.  This part of the

         16  bargain was fulfilled at 270 West 125th Street.  But

         17  the second and most crucial element was not executed

         18  and has never even been seriously attempted by the

         19  City, and that, Council members brings us here

         20  today.

         21                 For an addition to creating a public

         22  market, the Harlem Urban Development Corporation's

         23  memo of agreement with the merchants enumerated

         24  three conditions.  First, to retain a professional

         25  management firm for administration, that is in
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          2  Article 3B.  Second, to frame the Mod Association to

          3  perform managerial functions, that is in Article 3C.

          4    Third, to transition the Association into

          5  management and operational roles, the purpose of

          6  this training was to create a self- directed, self-

          7  supporting, self managing, and self- reliant

          8  organization.  The ultimate objective was an

          9  autonomous institution that would incubate

         10  indigenous entrepreneurs.  But somewhere along the

         11  way there was a loss of will.  It is pointless to

         12  blame this or that Mayor, the change of this or that

         13  Governor, to the decline of this or that development

         14  corporation, the demise of this or that Board, the

         15  creation of this or that Charter, the dereliction of

         16  this or that particular broken, casting blame will

         17  not help us resolve the issue.

         18                 Only one small favor required of us

         19  today, all that is required is for legislatives who

         20  believe in the sanctity of this City's continuity

         21  and the sanctity of this City's obligations, to

         22  recognize that we have a moral and ethical and legal

         23  requirement to fulfill.  If you permit the City to

         24  disregard its obligations in Harlem today, you open

         25  the flood gates for the City to disregard its
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          2  obligations everywhere else tomorrow, that is a

          3  dangerous precedent, and one you dare not allow the

          4  City to establish, because in Central Harlem today,

          5  then its Tribeca, Brooklyn Heights, and Douglastown

          6  tomorrow.  No, you cannot let pay back be a

          7  principle for policy making.

          8                 The mechanics of how the original

          9  Mart will operate successfully is not the primary

         10  issue before us, it is not.  That is purely a

         11  distraction, so, please, do not consider yourself

         12  over adherence.  We are confident that within the

         13  bounds of City Planning, EDC, and DBS, there is

         14  sufficient technical and managerial resources to

         15  join relation association and form a way of

         16  successful plans of operations.

         17                 We don't need to figure out myriad

         18  details today. History places only one demand on you

         19  today, justice and fairness requires the City to

         20  fulfill the terms of an obligation outlined 20 years

         21  ago.  As legislators, therefore, we are asking you

         22  to take a stand for law and order, by ordering the

         23  City to obey its own law, nothing more, nothing

         24  less.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Mr. Jackman,

          3  before you, let me, you're speaking as a member of

          4  the Community Board?

          5                 MR. JACKMAN:  Well, actually, I'm

          6  really representing myself today as a community

          7  resident.  Coincidently, I happen to be a member of

          8  Community Board #10, I serve on three committees,

          9  including the Economic Development Committee, and I

         10  was present when the City tried to present its ULURP

         11  to hand over the Mart from DBS to EDC.  And I

         12  moderated the public hearing at that time, and if

         13  memory serves me right, the Board voted unanimously

         14  against that idea.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Yes, thank

         16  you very much, and thanks to the Council we were

         17  able to carry that vote through, and which is to

         18  some extent why we are here today.  Thank you very

         19  much for your presentation.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Are he the

         21  son or brother Judge Jackman?  No, that is fine.

         22                 MR. JACKMAN:  Not son, that is

         23  enough.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Okay.  Ladies

         25  and gentlemen, somebody else wants to speak?
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          2                 MS. ROBINSON:  Hi, I will be brief.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Did you grow

          4  up with Councilman Perkins, too?

          5                 MS. ROBINSON:  Pardon me?  No, I

          6  didn't.  My name is Placida Robinson.  I'm a

          7  graduate of Columbia University, so I was going to

          8  briefly practice my public speaking.  I live in the

          9  Harlem community, and I went to Columbia to get my

         10  education and I am the newly appointed Executive

         11  Director of the Harlem Renaissance Local Development

         12  Corporation which is on 110th and 114th Street,

         13  Fifth to Eight Avenue.  That is my profession, and

         14  then what I intend to want to do in terms of making

         15  sure that in the Harlem community there is viable,

         16  economic activity for the Department of Businesses

         17  that do exist and for black entrepreneurs coming

         18  into the community.

         19                 I'm just speaking today as a Harlem

         20  resident in the sense that I look at 125th Street, I

         21  have had experience with the economy as an intern, I

         22  understand what projects were facilitated along

         23  125th, and I just want to make sure that viable,

         24  culturally sensitive Harlem businesses remain in our

         25  community.  And it is just very simple to me, I see
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          2  the corporate businesses coming in, and I see the

          3  cultural sensitivity for that is buying in the

          4  certain amount economics facing us, but we need to

          5  keep 125th Street that cultural sensitivity, those

          6  black businesses that so our community people can

          7  prosper as entrepreneurs.  You don't have anything

          8  else like it on 125th Street and you see the stores

          9  to the left and to the right, they're owned a lot of

         10  times by people who do not live in our community.

         11  There is nothing the matter with just leaving this

         12  particular project alone and allowing it to prosper.

         13    And I'm sure that it will be something that will

         14  bring in lots of tourists, it will be something that

         15  is culturally you can't replicate being anywhere

         16  else.  People will come to Harlem and tourists want

         17  to see something indigenous, they want to see

         18  something about only creation.  And so, and it's

         19  fine to me anytime really something really has, in

         20  my mind, intuitively the really great potential to

         21  prosper, for some reason people want to kind of shut

         22  it down very early and do away with it.  And I want

         23  you to understand that.

         24                 So tourism is abounding, this is the

         25  time to really keep something culturally appropriate
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          2  and sensitive around the community.  Okay?

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  All right,

          5  ladies and gentlemen, I want to thank everybody for

          6  coming here today.  Ma'am, do you want to say

          7  something too?  State your name.

          8                 MS. EDDY:  Hello, my name is Sylvia

          9  Eddy.  I'm a native New Yorker, almost 80 years and

         10  I feel very upset that rushing my brothers and

         11  sisters off the street and I have nowhere to buy my

         12  African doll. Then we went down to the Mart, and

         13  this is one of the Mart's creations, this doll here,

         14  and now we're going to have no place for nothing.

         15  Our City, and you know Harlem used to be 110th to

         16  155th, now its all over New York City, you know, and

         17  we have very little in it to say it belongs to us.

         18  We lived in one time where in our blocks, in our

         19  street, we were a community, we were at that place

         20  that everybody took care of each other.  Now we

         21  don't have it, and now we're taking the few places

         22  that we have that represents us, you know, we have

         23  no place to go, we have no place to buy our

         24  articles, we have no place to go anywhere.  We don't

         25  need, I mean Time Werner, all we got is Disney, Time

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            179

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  Werner, this is not the City of New York.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Okay, thank

          4  you so much.

          5                 MS. EDDY:  Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Go ahead,

          7  Sir, last speaker.

          8                 MR. ORTIZ:  Good afternoon.  I really

          9  wanted to thank all of you for having been at the

         10  Mart and here today to hear what we have to say.  I

         11  have been looking at all of you, you're very

         12  attentive to us.  I really couldn't have hoped for

         13  so much attention of public officials before, - -

         14                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you.

         15                 MR. ORTIZ: - -  as today.  I didn't

         16  know if what I had to say really had relevance

         17  considering all the important things that everybody

         18  else had to say here in the course of the day.

         19  Before the problem that we have had, I do have to

         20  say that I'm here now because I see some people if

         21  they hadn't showed up I would have just sat down and

         22  just contended with the five o'clock and had left.

         23                 But about three years ago, on the

         24  24th of February 1996, my place was burglarize while

         25  the administration, of the on site manager that was
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          2  here today speaking, the lady in the back. And there

          3  were police that had made a report and the report

          4  stated that the break in, it was not a break in

          5  because the area of the Mart didn't show any force

          6  of entry, that in fact, it seemed to them that the

          7  effort was made to burglarized occurred and the

          8  individual and the perpetrators went and left from

          9  inside, out.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  So it was an

         11  inside job?

         12                 MR. ORTIZ:  It was an inside job,

         13  they were so neat and full of time that they were

         14  able to take the hangers from the leather jackets

         15  and leave them in place from inside two covered

         16  plastic bags.  I wish the gentlemen hadn't left

         17  before I had a chance to ask them that question,

         18  because he apologized to me the afternoon, Monday at

         19  one o'clock, he told me, we apologize for not having

         20  done our job, and he remembers that, as a matter of

         21  fact.

         22                 I have a claim in court for $35,000

         23  in materials, money that I put out of my pocket, I'm

         24  afraid I don't get credit like a lot of the

         25  companies that are opening up businesses here. And
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          2  I'm just hoping that the way the City comes to

          3  settling this case with them, we can finish this

          4  out, and I would get a full apology from the outside

          5  manager and the people who were over him, because

          6  these were people that I use to participate in

          7  religious practices in when I was a part this strong

          8  faith.  For me to have this perpetrated by, well, at

          9  first, of course, I don't have any proof of that.

         10  Was to me the biggest let down I have ever suffered

         11  before.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  And what is

         13  your name, Sir, for the record?

         14                 MR. ORTIZ:  My name is Charles Ortiz

         15  and the name of my business was Alhambra and

         16  Granada, Inc., and sold leather jackets.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Thank you for

         18  your testimony.

         19                 MR. ORTIZ:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  All right,

         21  ladies and gentlemen, now, we will accept the

         22  Mayor's letter for the record, and I wanted to say

         23  that this is the third time that members of this

         24  Committee has been to Harlem, and we're going to

         25  come again, if requested.  The City Council, these
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          2  Council members, the whole Committee was here, in

          3  and out of course, from every borough, and me, I'm

          4  from Staten Island, but we're here, we're here

          5  because you're Council Member Bill Perkins requested

          6  that we come here, come here to you, and if he wants

          7  us to come back, we will be back.

          8                 But first, we have to go back down to

          9  City Hall, our legal counsel, our land use people

         10  are here too, which I hadn't known they were here

         11  until I spotted them, they stayed all day, I didn't

         12  know they were coming, and thank you, so much Gail

         13  for coming and your land use staff.  So Councilman

         14  and you, you're in Community Board #10, I believe is

         15  the Board here, and you folks said, you don't want

         16  to, it's your Councilman who went to those folks

         17  over there on the land use and said, we don't want a

         18  ULURP, we want it to stay here.  He did that for you

         19  and then he took the message to the Speaker Peter

         20  Vallone, and, of course, here we are now, so maybe

         21  we will invite them again, the Administration to

         22  keep this Mart open.  And our legal counsel the

         23  information, we will do everything we can on your

         24  behalf to get this out of court and get some money

         25  in there to do it, and that way you can gone with
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          2  your businesses.

          3                 Council Member Perkins.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you

          5  very much, Chairman O'Donovan, I want to, again,

          6  express on my personal behalf and the behalf of the

          7  9th District, the Harlem community, our deep

          8  appreciation for the support that you have given us

          9  in the area, the issues, surrounding the Mart,

         10  clarifying the issues surrounding the Mart, and

         11  helping us to move an agenda that would be fruitful

         12  for all parties concerned.  This is clearly a

         13  significant issue, as represented by the attendance

         14  here, as represented by these speaker that came

         15  forward, and so this is an issue that has

         16  implications, not something for the merchants at the

         17  Mart, but also, from our point of view for the

         18  merchants throughout the Harlem community, and

         19  throughout the City, for that matter, where a small

         20  entrepreneurs that are looking for a way to make a

         21  decent living and make a contribution to the

         22  community at the same time.

         23                 So, again, I want to thank you and

         24  the Committee members, I want to thank Gail Benjamin

         25  and the Land Use Committee. And just for a quick
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          2  moment, I want to mention that when you see

          3  communication from Philip Morris, who use to be the

          4  director or executive director of the Mart, Philip

          5  Morrow, yes, Philip Morrow, who now is with Sobro,

          6  South Bronx Overall Economic Development

          7  Corporation, he wanted me to make sure, that for the

          8  record that we accepted his testimony, which I think

          9  also sheds some significant light about the

         10  experience when he was there, which was a positive

         11  experience and about his point of view as to what

         12  could happen in the future which seems to be quite a

         13  promising point of view.  So I just want to make

         14  sure that that is here for the record.

         15                 We have received from the Mayor's

         16  Office, once again, some testimony in writing, but

         17  they, themselves, would not be here to answer the

         18  questions that were presented to them during the

         19  Land Use Committee hearings, and once again, which

         20  we were hoping to present to them during this

         21  particular hearing.  Instead we received a response

         22  in writing without their attendance, no opportunity

         23  to ask them any questions, no opportunity to raise

         24  concerns that were put in writing, from our point of

         25  view, false, it's not lies, they're definitely
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          2  misstatements as to the role that I and  members of

          3  the City Council played in the ULURP deliberations,

          4  and we just want to make sure, I want to make sure

          5  for the record that we do not accept the

          6  Administration's point of view about the history,

          7  especially the recent history that articulated in

          8  the letter that they are presenting to this

          9  Committee, and we will be answering that letter in

         10  writing so that the record can be clear and so that

         11  the truth will be told.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  Ladies and

         14  gentlemen this hearing is adjourned.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 5:10 p.m.)

         16                 (The following was read into the

         17  record.)

         18

         19  Testimony of:

         20  Deborah Weeks

         21  Acting Commissioner

         22  Department of Business Services

         23

         24                 The following is some information

         25  regarding Mart 125, located on 125th Street between
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          2  Adam Clayton Powell Boulevard and Frederick Douglas

          3  Boulevard, in which the City Council Economic

          4  Development Committee may be interested.

          5                 Mart 125 opened in 1986 and was

          6  operated by the State's Harlem Urban Development

          7  Corporation which was succeeded by the Harlem

          8  Community Development Corporation of the Empire

          9  State Development Corporation in 1995.  In April

         10  1996, the City's lease with the State was terminated

         11  and the City took control of the Mart.  A quick

         12  assessment by the City revealed profound problems

         13  with the Mart's financial and physical conditions.

         14  There was and continues to be a sparse revenue flow

         15  in contrast to substantial costs for heat, air-

         16  conditioning, electricity, security and maintenance,

         17  the details of which have been shared with Council

         18  Member Perkins and Council Land Use staff.

         19                 For merchants operating in the Mart,

         20  few records could be found documenting their right

         21  to occupancy; substantial arrears were noted for

         22  those in occupancy; and a widely disparate rent

         23  structure had evolved.

         24                 The Department of Business Services

         25  took possession of the building in 1996 and EDC has
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          2  assisted DBS with management responsibility for the

          3  Mart.

          4                 The City moved quickly to achieve

          5  financial stability and improve building conditions

          6  while developing a long term solution.  Since the

          7  property hadn't yet gone through the ULURP process

          8  for long- term leases, it was required that all

          9  merchants sign a one- year occupancy permit, the

         10  same document that is used at similar markets

         11  operated by the City.

         12                 To address the deterioration of the

         13  building, a course of necessary safety and

         14  structural repairs was begun.  EDC, through its

         15  facility manager, has completed approximately

         16  $370,000 of work to satisfy the most critical

         17  building conditions.  This work included

         18  installation of a fire suppression system for the

         19  kitchen areas, installation of a new roof, full

         20  restoration of the air- conditioning unit and

         21  repairs to the heating, electrical and plumbing

         22  systems, as well as the basement storage units in

         23  accordance with the Fire Department and the

         24  Department of Buildings' requirements.  Much of this

         25  work was done after business hours to avoid
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          2  disrupting the merchants.  The City also sought to

          3  promote the Mart.  In fiscal year 1998, $84,000 was

          4  expended for advertising and marketing.  This

          5  included radio and print advertisements, as well as

          6  organizing and hosting holiday celebrations at the

          7  Mart.  The City has been in constant communication

          8  with the merchants through staff members who are at

          9  the Mart at least twice a week, and on- site

         10  manager, Malcolm Shabazz Community Development

         11  Corporation, and meetings hosted by DBS.

         12                 However, despite, the extraordinary

         13  efforts of the City, the merchants have, in most

         14  cases, failed to make monthly payments.  The Mart

         15  was intended to be self- sustaining by revenue from

         16  the merchants.  Instead, the City has found itself

         17  in an untenable situation of subsidizing the Mart at

         18  a cost of more than $400,000 per year.  Currently 30

         19  of the 33 merchants are in arrears totaling

         20  $362,486.  In July 1998, the Merchants Association

         21  submitted an unsolicited proposal for it to assume

         22  management of the Mart.  The merchants' proposal did

         23  not address how the gap between the merchants

         24  unwillingness to pay rent and the costs of operating

         25  the Mart will be funded.
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          2                 In October, the Administration, EDC

          3  and DBS met with Council Member Perkins at length to

          4  discuss the ULURP applications. The Administration

          5  agreed to consider a variety of compromises

          6  regarding the use of the site.  However, the Council

          7  members was unwilling to negotiate and recommend

          8  that the Council Land Use Committee disapprove the

          9  ULURP applications, thus preventing the City from

         10  issuing long- term leases.  This recommendation was

         11  made with the full knowledge that a disapproval

         12  would result in the eviction of the merchants of

         13  Mart 125.

         14                 The City has always been clear that

         15  it will not indefinitely support the Mart in the

         16  absence of a long- term plan to manage the Mart in a

         17  fiscally responsible manner.  Accordingly, following

         18  denial of the ULURP applications, notices were

         19  served terminating merchants' occupancy to operate

         20  in the Mart.  It is expected that merchants will

         21  voluntarily vacate the Mart and if they wish, and

         22  are in good standing, EDC is willing to assist

         23  merchants in relocating to other City- owned

         24  markets.  If necessary, further legal action will be

         25  taken against merchants who remain at the Mart.
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          2                 We will be happy to answer any

          3  additional questions you may have.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 5:10 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 1st day of February 1999.

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

                                   ---------------------

         24                          PAT WTULICH

         25
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          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.

         12
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         14

         15
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         18

         19

         20

         21

         22                 -----------------------

                              PAT WTULICH
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